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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

| am happy to report that the past year saw C Y Foundation Group
Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
repositioning itself as a service provider of electronic gaming equipment
in Macau (the “Gaming Business”) in addition to our existing business in
the manufacturing of packaging products for luxury goods in China (the
“Packaging Business”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Since the Group recorded unsatisfactory financial performance with
losses in 2012/13, the Company’s board of directors (the “Board”) made
a careful review of the existing businesses with a view to restructuring
existing businesses and seek new investment opportunities in order to
enhance the return to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).
As a result of the review, the Board has decided to change the strategy
of the Group and taken certain major actions.

Kingbox (Asia) Limited and its subsidiaries (“Kingbox”) engage in the
manufacturing of packaging products for luxury goods in China. We
have taken steps in cost control and generating orders from new
customers. With the diligence and persistence of the management
team of the Packaging Business, the financials improved significantly
from loss of approximately HK$47.9 million in the past year to a profit of
approximately HK$1.0 million in the current year, although the turnover of
Kingbox decreased by about 12%. Part of the improvement in financial
result was due to the recovery of bad debt.

We recognise the tough challenges of the Packaging Business that
we are facing in the manufacturing business. However, we believe that
there are still business opportunities for us as we improve our efficiency
through better processes and automation.

With a view to better allocate our resources, the Group, on 30
September 2013, discontinued our property investment business by
selling the entire interest in a former wholly-owned subsidiary, Expert
Global Investments Limited, which owned investment properties located
in Beijing, to an independent third party for RMB110 million. We used
part of the proceeds to expand the Gaming Business.

During the past few years, Macau has been one of the most rapidly
growing economies largely because of the gaming industry. Macau is
also the only territory within China where casino operations are legal.
Macau’s gaming industry has traditionally been dominated by the VIP
gaming high roller segment. In recent years, mass market gaming is
seeing growth in a faster pace than VIP gaming and junket business.
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The Board is of the view that the acquisition of CY Management Limited
(formerly known as Weike (G) Management Macau Limited, a company
incorporated in 2009) will enable the Group to generate sustainable
income and cash flow in the medium term.

With the completion of acquisition on 16 September 2013, the Gaming
Business has generated a loss for the Group during the current year. This
was due mainly to significant startup operating costs, amortization and
depreciation charges attributable to the gaming business and such costs
and charges temporarily exceeded the revenue for the current financial
year.

EXPANSION PLANS

It is encouraging to see our team of the Gaming Business gaining
confidence in their operations and seeing improvements in operational
efficiency. As we scale the operation over the next two to three years,
we anticipate the contribution from the Gaming Business in Macau to be
significant to the Group in the medium term. We will continue to procure
new business relationship in Macau and plan to extend our geographical
reach to other parts of Asia. We have a business plan to expand our
services to operate 3,000 or more slot and multi terminal machines
throughout Asia in the coming three years.

It has been the business strategy of the Company to proactively seek
investment opportunities, especially in the gaming industry in Asia in
order to enhance the return to Shareholders. On 1 April 2014, the
Group signed a non-binding memorandum of understanding with Mr.
Nguyen Ngoc My in relation to the Group’s proposed acquisition (the
“Proposed Acquisition”) on a group of companies (the “Target Group”) in
the Socialist Republic of Vietnam (“Vietnam”). The Target Group (and their
affiliated companies) is currently the only licensed operator in Vietnam
carrying on the business for betting on a computerized totalisator
betting system for greyhound and horse racing. This is an investment
opportunity after the National Assembly of Vietham passed a law in 2013
allowing the government regulation of the business for betting on horse
racing, greyhound racing and international football, as well as off-course
betting through off-course betting outlets and telecommunication devices
(the “New Betting Rights”).

Upon the expected implementation of an executive decree in Vietnam
later this year, the existing licensed operators would see a clearer and
more established regulation for their existing operations, in addition
enabling the certainty of the New Betting Rights.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

The Board considers the Proposed Acquisition to be an investment
opportunity for the Group to expand our Gaming Business into Vietnam.
The management is still in the process to negotiate and evaluate the
Proposed Acquisition. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 1 April 2014 and 30 May 2014 respectively for details.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board comprises a majority of independent non-executive directors
(4 out of a total of 7 members during the financial year ended 31 March
2014) and keeps a proactive approach in maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance. Through a total of approximately 30 meetings
of a high average attendances (over 80%) of various board committees
and the Board in the current year, directors had ample opportunities
to engage in robust discussion and exchange of views in different
perspectives and formulate policies and strategies in the best interest
of the Group. The Board will continue to enhance the Company’s
corporate governance standard and keep in line with prevailing regulatory
requirements.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Overall, the Group’s performance has improved significantly from a loss
of approximately HK$65.2 million in 2012/13 to a loss of approximately
HK$12.8 million in the current year. Therefore, the year that ended was a
year of “transformation” which the Group hope to use as a foundation for
future growth. Looking forward, the Group will maintain a high standard
of corporate governance, actively pursue high-quality investment
opportunities and realize our potential of our existing businesses.

GRATITUDE

| would like to take the opportunity to thank my fellow directors and
all our staff for their continuing commitment, dedication and hard
work during the year. | would also like to thank our Shareholders and
customers for their support which is critical in taking the company
forward to a better future.

Thank you.
Sincerely,

SNEAH Kar Loon
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of packaging
products for luxury goods in China, and providing service of electronic
gaming equipment in Macau.

The financial year ended 31 March 2014 was a “Year of transformation”
for the Group. In previous year, the Group was engaged in the
manufacturing of packaging products in China, digital entertainment
business and property investment. The Group recorded a loss of
approximately HK$12.8 million compared to a loss of HK$65.2 million
in the previous year. The Board continued to review the existing
business and seek potential investment opportunities in order to
enhance the return to the shareholders. On 16 September 2013, the
Group completed the acquisition of CY Management Limited (“‘CY
Management”) (formerly known as Weike (G) Management Macau
Limited), which is engaged in providing service for electronic gaming
equipment in Macau. It is because the management consider Macau
being one of the most rapidly growing economies in Asia since the
liberalization of gaming industry in 2002 and it is also the only territory
within China where casino operation is legalized. The management
expects that the new business to bring substainable cash inflow and
profit to the Group in future.

On 30 September 2013, the Group disposed the entire interest
in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Expert Global Investments Limited
(the “Disposal Company”), to an independent third party at a cash
consideration of RMB110 million. The major assets of the Disposal
Company and its subsidiaries were investment properties located in
Beijing. The management expected the cash realized in this disposal
would help the Group to develop new business opportunities as well as
expand the existing Gaming Business in Macau and Asia.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results

For the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Group’s total revenue
has decreased slightly by 4.8% from approximately HK$66.9 million to
approximately HK$63.7 million. The continuing operations which consist
of manufacturing of packaging products for luxury goods in China and
provision of services to electronic gaming equipment in Macau and
discontinuing operations which consist of property investment and
digital entertainment contributed approximately HK$57.2 million (2013:
approximately HK$54.0 million) and approximately HK$6.5 million (2013:
approximately HK$12.9 million) to the Group respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

During the year, the packaging product business and the property
investment business generated profits and the gaming business and
digital entertainment business were at a loss.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Appointment of independent non-executive director and
re-designation of director

With effect from 2 July 2014, (1) Mr. Er Kwong Wah (“Mr. Er") has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director (“INED”) of the
Company; (2) Mr. Lai Hock Meng (“Mr. Lai”) has been re-designated from
INED to executive director; (3) Mr. Er has assumed the roles of Mr. Lai in
all the board committees of the Company (the "Changes”). Details of the
Changes are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 2 July
2014,

Termination of The Agreement in respect of the First
Acquisition and Lapse of the Offer in respect of the Second
Acquisition

Three announcements regarding these proposed acquisitions were
made on 14 March 2014, 22 April 2014 and 23 June 2014 respectively
(“Announcements”). Capitalized terms used herein shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the Announcements unless the context
otherwise requires.

Given that no acceptance to the Offer had been received by Science
Power on or before 22 June 2014 and that the First Acquisition and
the Second Acquisition are inter-conditional, the Offer in respect of
the Second Acquisition had lapsed and the Agreement in respect of
the First Acquisition had been terminated. No party shall have any
further obligations in respect of the First Acquisition and/or the Second
Acquisition.

The MOU in relation to the Proposed Acquisition

On 1 April 2014, the Company has entered into a non-binding MOU with
Mr. Nguyen Ngoc My (the “Seller”) for purpose of the furtherance of good
faith negotiations on the Proposed Acquisition. The Proposed Acquisition
is to acquire an effective equity interest of 49% on the Operating
Companies. The proposed consideration is USD20 million which shall be
payable by Consideration Shares.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14

RAFEE  BREMEBRYFREFHERSEN - M
R R MBS IR TG R SSEIE -

BERKRREE

ZEBIFHTESRATES

BZZ-—NELR B (REELE([REE])
BEZERARBZEUIFRITES: QBEALE
([FEEE]) CEBIFNITERREIRNITES: QF
REREEAENARBAEEEREG 2R ([#
) AHEF2HBHNARABHA-_T—OF
TRAZHZ R

FRE-WEESEZZHER EREESE WS
BERZEHNRY

FHEZEERUEBZ=HAMED IR —NF=
A+HRA - ZE—MFMNA-+=-HBR=F—NF<A
ZT=E8K ([ZEQM]) - BRIEXESERE TR
ABEFMAZERRARREZELAMAATE EBHER
E

48 7 Science Powerl® ZZE—MHF A=+ A2 Al
REEZEH 7N BEE—WESERE_WESIED
B AKY WEBE-WESIHEL2ENEERB ME
ME—WBEEZMED SR -FTATHBAR
F-WEEER SE_WEEEE—SE LEAE
Eo

FREBUBSEZHESR

RZZ—FMHA—H  ANAFE BENguyen Ngoc Myt
F(BRADINTENR D 2B MREER 2
st s R IE T E R - B R E R
W HE A & 2 1 A Rl49%,2 B AR #E - B3 (R B /32,000
B AUREBRO -



Management Discussion and Analysis

At the end of each full year of operations in the first three years after
Completion, the Seller is also eligible to receive a consideration equivalent
to 10% of the EBITDA of the Operating Companies payable by way of
Shares.

The Seller and the Operating Companies are currently the only
licensed operator in Vietnam carrying on the business for betting on a
computerised totalisator betting system for greyhound and horse racing.

In September 2013 the National Assembly of Vietnam passed a law
allowing the government regulation of the business for betting on horse
racing, dog racing and international football, as well as off-course betting
through OCBs and telecommunication devices. Therefore, it is expected
that each of the Operating Company is permitted to operate any and all
of the following businesses at least in first line cities throughout Vietnam:
(a) Betting in OCBs; (b) Betting by way of simulcast; (c) Betting by using
mobile phones; and/or (d) Betting by using Internet. This is also one of
the conditions precedent prior to the Completion.

By mutual agreement of the Seller and the Company dated 30 May 2014
and for the sake of providing more time to conduct the due diligence,
the term (expiry on 30 June 2014) of the MOU has been extended for
a period of three months, up to and inclusive of 30 September 2014.
The relevant announcements had been issued on 1 April 2014 and
30 May 2014 respectively (“MOU Announcements”). Capitalized terms
used herein shall have the same meanings as those defined in the MOU
Announcements unless the context otherwise requires.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

As at 31 March 2014, the bank and cash balances of the Group
amounted to HK$79.1 million. The Group had a liability component of
the unsecured convertible notes of approximately HK$52.1 million. The
convertible notes will be matured in September 2016.

The gearing ratio of loans against the total equity as at 31 March 2014
was 27.6%. As the majority of bank deposits and cash on hand were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, Macau Pataca and US
dollars, the Group’s exchange risk exposure depended on the movement
of the exchange rate of the aforesaid currencies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save for the acquisition and disposal disclosed in note 29(a) and 29(b),
respectively, the Company did not have any material acquisition, disposal
and significant investment in subsidiaries and affiliated companies during
the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group employed approximately 493 permanent employees as at
31 March 2014, including approximately 22 employees in Hong Kong,
approximately 449 in the People’s Republic of China and approximately
22 in Macau. The Group continued to review the remuneration packages
of employees with reference to the level and composition of pay, general
market condition and individual performance. Staff benefits include
contribution to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and discretionary
bonus, share option scheme, medical allowance and hospitalization
scheme and housing allowance.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, the Company did not have any pledged asset.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Details of commitments of the Group are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statement.

LITIGATIONS

The Group has a number of pending litigations and in the opinion
of the legal counsel, it is premature to predict the outcomes. Details
of litigations are disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

SNEAH Kar Loon, aged 57, joined the Group in April 2011 as chairman
of the Board. Mr. Sneah was the chief financial officer of the Company
from May 2007 to July 2007, the business development executive of
the Company from July 2007 to October 2007, and the chief executive
officer of the Company from November 2007 to November 2008.
Mr. Sneah had a bachelor’s degree in Asian studies from Lawrence
University, Wisconsin, the United States of America, and a master’s
degree in international management from the American Graduate School
of International Management, Arizona, the United States of America. He
had held senior management positions in a global financial institution,
and had over 20 years of experience in investment banking, corporate
finance, and private venture capital business.

BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan, 58, joined the Company in April 2011.
He was an independent non-executive director of the Company from
April 2011 to January 2013 and re-designated to executive director
of the Company since February 2013. Mr. Balakrishnan obtained his
Bachelor of Arts in Economics from Amherst College, Massachusetts,
USA in 1978 and obtained his Master of Science in Journalism from
Columbia University in the City of New York in 1980. As part of his
third year in Amherst College, he spent a year at the London School of
Economics in 1977 researching the economies of Malaysia, Mauritius
and Guyana. Mr. Balakrishnan started his working life in New York in
1981 as a reporter at the Commodity News Services (CNS) covering
monetary policy of the US Federal Reserve Bank. Mr. Balakrishnan came
to Singapore in 1982 and worked at the Bankers Trust Singapore branch
as a Research Manager and also at the Singapore Press Holdings. He
came to Hong Kong in 1989 to work for the Dow Jones publication, “Far
Eastern Economic Review” as a Specialist Writer on South East Asian
economies. He worked there till 1994. During 1995 to 1996, he worked
as a manager at the Value Partners Limited and as Research Manager
at the Worldsec International, an investment bank based in Hong Kong,
during 2001 to 2003. Mr. Balakrishnan has been a director of “The Cool
Investor (HK) Limited”, a company specializing in providing outsourced
editorial services to scientific, medical and technical journals and books
since 1996. He is also the Director of the Indian company “Excel Edit
Services” providing similar services based in Chennai city in India.
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LIN Zheying, aged 49, joined the Group in February 2013. Mr. Lin
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Economics from Shanxi Finance
and Economics University in 1987, an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from Guanghua School of Management, Peking
University in 2003, and a doctorate degree in business administration
from France Rennes School of Business in 2008. Mr. Lin has been an
executive director of the Hankore Environment Tech Group Limited,
a company listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited since May 2011. He is currently the Chairman of Jade Capital
Management Limited. Previously, Mr. Lin worked for Chinese Ministry
of Commerce, and he was a member of the Small and Medium Size
Enterprises Training Committee of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
He was a specialist member of the specialist committee of the China
Development Bank. He is also a member of the Advisory Committee of
the China - Italy Mandarin Fund.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LAl Hock Meng, aged 58, joined the Group in April 2011. Mr. Lai
has a Bachelor of Arts degree and a Master of Arts degree from the
University of Cambridge in England, majoring in economics. He is also a
chartered financial analyst with the CFA Institute in the United States of
America and a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing in the United
Kingdom. Mr. Lai is currently the Chairman of Singapore-based corporate
advisory firm HML Consulting Group. Mr. Lai is the independent director
of various companies listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited, including China Energy Limited, China Essence Group
Ltd., China Oilfield Technology Services Group Limited, Delong Holdings
Limited, CFM Holdings Limited and ASTI Holdings Limited,. He is also
the non-executive director of PureCircle Limited, a company listed on the
London Stock Exchange.

10 Rudy Cheok Kei, aged 53, joined the Group in April 2011. He is
currently a corporate consultant in corporate strategy, restructuring,
mergers and acquisitions and direct investment in China. Mr. lo was the
chief financial officer of the Company from July 2007 to March 2008.
Mr. lo is @ member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a bachelor’'s degree in administrative studies
from York University, Toronto, Canada and a master’s degree in business
(information technology) from Curtin University of Technology, Australia.
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YONG Peng Tak, aged 46, joined the Group in April 2011. Mr. Yong has
been the chief executive officer in Fortress Capital Asset Management
(M) Sdn. Bhd. in Malaysia since 2002. Mr Yong obtained his bachelor’s
degree in accountancy in Nanyang Technological Institute, The National
University of Singapore in 1990. He obtained his master's degree in
business administration from the Imperial College, University of London in
1994. Mr Yong is also a chartered financial analyst with the CFA Institute
in the United States of America and a Fellow Chartered Accountant of
Singapore.

GOH Hoon Leum, aged 64, joined the Group in March 2013. Mr.
Goh has a bachelor's degree in Land Economics from University of
Technology, Sydney and a master’s degree in Property from University
of Newcastle, Australia. He is the Fellow member of Singapore Institute
of Surveyors and Valuers and a member of Australia Property Institute.
Presently Mr. Goh is the Project Director of Real Estate Investment of
Uncharted Group Limited. He is an INED of Wellcall Holdings Berhad, a
company listed on the Bursa Malaysia, the Malaysian Stock Exchange.
He has more than 30 years of experience in construction and property
development industries. He spent first 5 years of his employment in
construction industry before starting his 13 years career with Hong
Leong Group, an established property development company. He owned
a property consultancy and investment business before joining public
listed companies as their Project Director. Mr. Goh specialized in property
development management advisory and has been serving clients in
Singapore and Asia region. He has been involved in optimizing the use of
land use for several delicate development projects. Mr. Goh is a licensed
Appraiser in Lands & Buildings and an accredited Resident Technical
Officer (Building and Civil Engineering Works) of Singapore. He was
conferred a Public Service Medal (PBM) in 1996 by the President of The
Republic of Singapore.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 (the
“Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing of packaging
products for luxury goods in China and the provision of services to
electronic gaming equipment in Macau.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the financial year under review are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 39 and 40 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on
page 132. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company for the financial year under
review are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the financial
year under review are set out on pages 42 of this Annual Report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the Period are set out
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statement.
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ISSUE OF SHARES

During the financial year under review, a total of 8,450,000 shares of the
Company were issued.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye
laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the financial year under review, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements during the financial year under review in the
investment properties and property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the financial year under review, the percentage of turnover attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers to the total turnover was 56.1%.
The percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer
to the total turnover was 33.6%.

In the financial year under review, the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers to the total purchases
was 55.9%. The percentage of purchase attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier to the total purchases was 19.4%.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital had an interest in any of the major customers or
suppliers above.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the financial year under review and
up to the date of this Annual Report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

SNEAH Kar Loon (Chairman)

BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan

NG Kwok Lun (resigned on 1 October 2013)
LIN Zheying

Independent Non-executive Directors:

LAl Hock Meng
YONG Peng Tak
IO Rudy Cheok Kei
GOH Hoon Leum

In accordance with sections 86(2) and 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Messrs Lin Zheying, Lai Hock Meng and Goh Hoon Leum shall retire and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each Director has a written service contract with the Company. None
of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Company by giving a notice of more than one year or payment of
compensation, or other payments equivalent to more than one year’s
emoluments.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required (a) to be notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares
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Name Capacity Number of Shares Shareholding
" E 27 RHEHE BERE

(%)
Mr. SNEAH Kar Loon Beneficial owner 16,900,000 1.60%
BRMmEE EnlEAA
Mr. BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan Himself and his spouse as 4,110,000 0.39%

beneficial owners
BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan?t 4 BRERBRERERA
Mr. NG Kwok Lun Beneficial owner 2,100,000 0.20%
(resigned on 1 October 2013)
RE @& EnEAA
(RZZE—=F+HA—HEET)
Mr. LIN Zheying Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.09%
MEZEE EnEAA
Mr. LAl Hock Meng Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.19%
HEREE EmEAA
Mr. YONG Peng Tak Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.09%
BERE EmBEAA
Mr. 10 Rudy Cheok Kei Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.28%
o/ e EnEAA
Mr. GOH Hoon Leum Himself and his spouse as 2,000,000 0.19%
beneficial owners
RIBMIEE BREREBRERERA
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Long Positions in Shares Option of the Company KARBREZITR
Number of
Name Date of grant underlying shares Shareholding
HmE RHEBH HEROEE ERE
(%)
Mr. SNEAH Kar Loon 14 January 2013 1,500,000 1.23%
BRmEE —ET-=F—-A+@mA
10 January 2014 11,500,000
—2-mF—A+H
Mr. BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan 14 January 2013 800,000 0.17%
BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan?t 4 —EF—=F—A+THWEA
10 January 2014 1,000,000
—mE—F+A
Mr. NG Kwok Lun 14 January 2013 1,000,000 0.09%
(resigned on 1 October 2013)
REfmEE —E-=F—-A+m@mA
(RZZ—=F1+H—HEIT)
Mr. LIN Zheying 10 January 2014 1,000,000 0.09%
MEELE —E—mNE—A+H
Mr. LAl Hock Meng 14 January 2013 800,000 0.09%
HERLE —T-=F—H+MAB
10 January 2014 200,000
—Z-MmMFE—-H+H
Mr. YONG Peng Tak 14 January 2013 800,000 0.09%
B ESE —T-=F—H+MAB
10 January 2014 200,000
—Z-MmMFE—-H+H
Mr. 10 Rudy Cheok Kei 14 January 2013 800,000 0.09%
sk A —T-=F—H+MAB
10 January 2014 200,000
—Z-MmMFE—-H+H
Mr. GOH Hoon Leum 10 January 2014 200,000 0.02%

RIS &

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the

T —mE—A+A

B EXHEEIN R_E—MOF=A=1T—H AEX

"ﬂ%%‘ii%ﬁﬂ(}\% XN T&,ﬁjﬁ BAE (&
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Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2014, the persons/companies, other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares in the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and as
recorded in the register of the Company were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares or Underlying Shares of the
Company
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Name Capacity Number of Shares Shareholding
wnE AR g4 RHEE BRE
(%)
Dato POH Po Lian Interest of controlled corporation 781,626,412 74.18%
BEREE REHERE 2 s
Weike (G) Management Pte Ltd Beneficial owner 460,000,000 43.65%
EmEAA Note
{5
Luck Continent Limited Beneficial owner 321,626,412 30.52%
M AE R AR EnEAA
Phua Wei Seng Interest of controlled corporation 174,217,758 16.53%
FiEHDAE 2 R
Steady Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 174,217,758 16.53%

BEaEEA

Note: As at 31 March 2014, Weike (G) Management Pte Ltd is wholly owned by Dato
POH Po Lian, these 460,000,000 underlying shares related to the conversion

shares which may be issued under the Weike Notes.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, according to the register
of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of

the SFO, the Directors and the chief executive of the Company were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Part XV of the SFO.

e R-ZE—ME=ZA=+—H Weike (G Management Pte
Ltdir B B R =B 2 E % F - 7460,000,000% 1 7 A% 15 22
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants as
defined in the Scheme, including without limitation, full time or part time
employees of the Group who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants include directors, full-time employees,
senior executives and consultants of the Company.

The current Scheme became effective on 28 September 2012 and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of shares falling to be issued in respect of the
unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted under the
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the Company as at the date of approval of the Scheme. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
shares options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting. There is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The subscription price will be determined at the absolute discretion of
the Directors, provided that it shall not be less than the highest of the
closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange as
shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer
date; the average of the closing prices of the shares as shown in the
daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date and the nominal value of the share
on the offer date.

No share options were cancelled or lapsed during the financial year under
review.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14

B

ARFRE —RERAES ([5H8])  UmHAEE
EBBRWEHRERzAaER2RE (ERRAE &
‘BEMNRR)AEE2BRFRBER) ZHEDHLE
H-AEBRBREEBEARAZES 2BER SR
TBABKER -

BITA BN B F A A+ N\BER - BIERTTH
HIIERT BRI A% AE T FRERFER -

RS RBF BT R B 2 RITE BRI TER AT %
T2 RSEE RSN B ERE A AR R RN
210%  PMEM -+ 8 B BB A - IRIEET2ITA T AR
AR -—LEER2BERTZRNEZSHEETEE
BARBEARBE 2 ETRNZ21% - TR HBE
BULBR AR < B RS BRI BCR R & EHEfE - SRR
W ER A ATTERI BB 2 A MR -

RBEKHEFBYPIBET  ERBETSERNAR
AR RN B AR ME A RER LRI
Pz W fE - RO R ERBHOAHAT R EE X REBR
P BRER LA FHWTERBRORELN BB
ZHEE(ARERE) -

MBS R - X BB AR B A SRR



Directors’ Report

EEERE
Details of the movement of the share options of the Company under the HZE -Z—MUF=A=+—HILPFBFE 8 AR
Scheme for the financial year ended 31 March 2014 are set out below: RIEBRIEZ SEFBERIIT
Exercise  Share options Share options
Date of grant of Expiry date of price held as at held as at
Grantees share options share options (HKS) 31 March 2013 Granted Exercised 31 March 2014
R-E-=% R=B-mE
1€ =A=t-H ZR=t-H
ARA REBRERS BREISA (Bm) wEZBRE B B HHEZBRE
Directors
1
Mr. SNEAH Kar Loon 14.1.2013 13.1.2018 0.1292 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
BRRTE 10.1.2014 9.1.2019 047 - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
30.11.2019 047 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
30.11.2020 047 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
30.11.2021 0.47 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
30.11.2022 0.47 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
30.11.2023 0.47 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Subtotal:
Pt 1,500,000 11,500,000 - 13,000,000
Mr. BALAKRISHNAN 14,1.2013 13.1.2018 0.1292 800,000 - 800,000 -
Narayanan 10.1.2014 9.1.2019 047 - 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
BALAKRISHNAN
Narayanan’t &
Subtotal:
It 800,000 1,000,000 1,800,000 -
Mr. NG Kwok Lun 14.1.2013 13.1.2018 0.1292 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 -

(resigned on 1 October 2013)
REREE(RZE-=F

+A—-RE#T)
Mr. LIN Zheying 10.1.2014 9.1.2019 047 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
WEELE
Mr. LAl Hock Meng 14.1.2013 13.1.2018 0.1292 800,000 - - 800,000
RERELE 10.1.2014 9.1.2019 047 - 200,000 - 200,000
Subtotal:
INGT: 800,000 200,000 - 1,000,000
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EEERE
Exercise  Share options Share options
Date of grant of Expiry date of price held as at held as at
Grantees share options share options (HK$) 31 March 2013 Granted Exercised 31 March 2014
R=2-=% R=E-mE
1€ =R=t-*H =ZB=t-8
ARA REBRERS EREISA (Bm) ®EzZERE BRI BT BEZERE
Mr. YONG Peng Tak 14.1.2013 13.1.2018 0.1292 800,000 - - 800,000
BTELE 10.1.2014 9.1.2019 047 - 200,000 - 200,000
Subtotal:
it 800,000 200,000 - 1,000,000
Mr. 10 Rudy Cheok Kei 14.1.2013 13.1.2018 0.1292 800,000 - - 800,000
hEEE A 10.1.2014 9.1.2019 047 - 200,000 - 200,000
Subtotal:
Nt 800,000 200,000 - 1,000,000
Mr. GOH Hoon Leum 10.1.2014 9.1.2019 047 - 200,000 - 200,000
REHEE
Sub-total for directors:
2 5,700,000 14,300,000 2,800,000 17,200,000
Others
Hit
Employees and consultants 14.1.2013 13.1.2018 0.1292 6,000,000 - 5,500,000 500,000
EERER 10.1.2014 1.12.2014 0.47 - 1,300,000 150,000 1,150,000
30.11.2019 0.47 - 800,000 - 800,000
30.11.2020 0.47 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
30.11.2021 0.47 - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
30.11.2022 0.47 - 1,400,000 - 1,400,000
30.11.2023 0.47 - 1,600,000 - 1,600,000
Sub-total for others
Hphet: 6,000,000 7,300,000 5,650,000 7,650,000
Total
@ 11,700,000 21,600,000 8,450,000 24,850,000
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this Annual Report, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float of not less than 25% of its shares in the hands of the public
throughout the financial year under review and up to the date of this
Annual Report.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the end of the reporting period of the
Group are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions:

1. On 24 May 2013, Perfect Ace Global Limited and Ace Advantage
Developments Limited (both being direct wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company) (collectively, the “Purchasers”)
entered into a sales and purchase agreement with Weike (G)
Management Pte Ltd. (“Weike PTE”) and Dato Poh Po Lian
(collectively, the “Vendors”), pursuant to which, the Purchasers
have conditionally agreed to acquire, and the Vendors have
conditionally agreed to sell the sale shares at a total consideration
of HK$69 million, which is to be satisfied by way of issue of
the convertible notes to the Vendors. Upon Completion, CY
Management Limited (“CYM”), formally known as Weike (G)
Management Macau Limited become an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.
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On 24 May 2013, CYM and Weike PTE entered into a service
agreement. Pursuant to which, CYM agreed to provide the
information technology services to Weike PTE at target sites for a
term up to 31 March 2016. During the year, the amount of service
fee received was approximately HK$2,899,000. Details of which
are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the transactions were disclosed in the announcement
dated 24 May 2014 and 16 September 2013 and the circular
dated 18 July 2013 respectively.

2. On 8 January 2014, CY Management Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into five agreements with
Weike Gaming Technology (S) Pte. Ltd. for the acquisition of
certain gaming machines at the total cash consideration of
approximately USD1,881,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$14.67 million). Details of the transaction were disclosed in the
announcement dated 8 January 2014.

The above connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions have been reviewed by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The independent non-executive directors have
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions have been entered
into (@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(b) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than
those available to or from independent third parties; (c) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive directors, of
the Company are of the view that all of the above transactions were
on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company and that the terms of the relevant agreements
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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The Company confirms that the continuing connected transactions
as disclosed above fall under the definition of continuing connected
transactions in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Based on the work performed, the auditor of the Company have
confirmed in a letter to the Board to the following effect with respect
to the continuing connected transactions of the Company that such
transactions:

(i) have received approval from the Board;
(i)  were conducted in accordance to the pricing policy;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing such transactions; and

(iv)  have not exceeded the cap amount for the financial year ended 31
March 2014 disclosed in the relevant announcement.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in the
information of directors during the Period is as follow:

Mr. NG Kwok Lun resigned as an executive director of the Company with
effect from 1 October 2013.

Directors’ changes in interests in shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance are set out in
the section, “Directors Interests” of this Directors’ Report.

Directors’ Report
EEERE

AARHER  EXFIRE 2 FHEMERX S B ETRAE
AR FEE TORFBHER S MARREET LETH
BISE14AT Z IEEHE °

ERFTT 2 TR RRARZZBMER — DR

EEeMREBALNBEBEISZ TIIFE B

£ER5:

) BEEEEeHE:

i) ERBEEEBERET:

iy REREZERSHZEBEHZET K

v WEEBEEAMAEESEE_T—NF=A
=+ ALY RFEZ LREE-

B TIRAIE 135180 BE AR 28
W

REMALEREARANTEE AT =F1+H—
BAEAR -

EERARRRN s (ERRBSFRARKRHE
XVER) 2 BBHNAEFEHRE [EFEam] — &

TEEXRERRAT
TR CENFEFERS

=



Directors’ Report
EEERE

AUDITOR

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (formerly known as ANDA CPA Limited)
retired as auditor of the Company in the annual general meeting held on
27 September 2013 (“AGM”") and its re-appointment as auditor of the
Company for the ensuing year was passed in the AGM.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting

to re-appoint ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited as auditor of the Company
to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
SNEAH Kar Loon
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2014
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The Board adopted the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report, Appendix 14 (“CG Code”) to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, Appendix 10 (“Model Code”) to the Listing
Rules as the Company’s Corporate Governance Code and as the
Company’s Code for Securities Transactions by Directors respectively.
The Board updated the terms of reference of all committees of the
Company and adopted various guidelines and policies during the
financial year ended 31 March 2014 (“CG Period”) to enhance the
Company’s corporate governance and keep in line with prevailing
regulatory requirements.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company had made specific enquiry of all the Directors and
confirmed that all the Directors have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code during the financial year ended 31 March
2014,

ADOPTION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRINCIPLES

The Board is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions of the CG Code to the Listing Rules
throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2014 except for the
following deviation:

Code Provision A.4.1

Code Provision A.4.1 provides, inter alia, that non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.

Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific
term. However, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at a general meeting of the Company at least once every three years in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

The Board has set up a total of 6 board committees, namely audit
committee, executive committee, investment committee, independent
board committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Details of the composition of the audit committee, the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee are set out in the Directors’
Report of the Annual Report.

The Board has established a comprehensive approval procedure, matters
reserved for the Board’ approval include, among others, Company’s
material investment decisions and long-term objectives, financial
accounts, declaration of dividend, grant of share options, competent
management, maintenance of internal control, and compliance with
statutory and regulatory obligations.

Directors, as members of the Board, jointly share responsibility for the
proper direction and management of the Company. Daily operations and
administration are delegated to the management.

The management implements the Board’s decisions, makes business
proposals and reports to the Board on the overall performance of the
Group. Daily operations and administration of the business during the
financial year ended 31 March 2014 were delegated to the 3 Executive
Directors (“EDs”) and the senior management of the Company.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Board comprised
7 Directors, consisting of 3 EDs and 4 Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INEDs”). Biographical information of the Directors is set out in
the section of “Directors’ Profile” of this Annual Report.

During the CG Period, the Board had held 17 physical Board meetings.
Out of the 17 Board meetings, 2 of them were held to discuss and/
or approve the annual and the interim financial performance/results of
the Group while 15 of them were held to discuss, among other things,
various projects contemplated by the Group and the legal matters of
the Group. The draft minutes of Board meetings were prepared by the
Company Secretary and circulated to all Directors for comments within a
reasonable time. The approved minutes are maintained by the Company
Secretary and available for inspection by all Directors at request.
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During the CG Period, the attendances of each of the Directors at the
above Directors’ meetings are presented as follows:
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Director Capacity Attendance EE 51 HEER
SNEAH Kar Loon Chairman & ED 1217 BXRfe IRFDTER 12/17
BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan ED 16/17  BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan #{7& % 16/17
LIN Zheying ED 817 ME=E WTEE 8/17
LAl Hock Meng INED 917  FEEH BAUFWTES 917
YONG Peng Tak INED 917 HTE BUFEHTES 917
10 Rudy Cheok Kei INED 917 HEE BUFEHTES 917
GOH Hoon Leum INED 10117 R BUFMTES 10/17

During the CG Period, none of the Directors above has or maintained any
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship with any
of the other Directors.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in
respect of any possible legal actions against its Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the CG Period, the roles of Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer were held separately by Mr. SNEAH Kar Loon and Mr.
BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan respectively. The Chairman is responsible in
leading the Board for the overall development strategy of the Group. The
Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the authorities to manage the
operation of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee of the Company, in compliance with the
requirements of the relevant CG Code provisions, is responsible for
formulating policy and making recommendations to the Board on
nomination, appointment of Directors and Directors succession. The
Company has, upon the recommendation of the Nomination Committee,
adopted a succession plan guidelines to provide guidance for devising
a succession plan for the Board and the senior management so as to
ensure the continuance of the business of the Group should any director
or senior management be unable to continue his or her service. Details
of the Nomination Committee are set out in the section of “Nomination
Committee” below.

The Nomination Committee shall ensure the Board comprises members
with mixed skills and experience with appropriate weights necessary to
accomplish the Group’s business development, strategies, operation,
challenges and opportunities.
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Some Directors are not subject to a specific term of appointment except
that all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws including the retirement
by rotation at least once every 3 years. The procedures for election as
Directors are available and accessible on the Company’s website at
http://www.cyfoundation.com.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has, upon the recommendation of the Company’s Nomination
Committee, adopted a board diversity policy for purpose to maintain a
diversity of the Board which can in turn enhance the Board’s decision-
making capability. In assessing potential candidates for the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider the guidelines and factors set out
in the board diversity policy with a view that any appointment to the
Board will be based on merit, having regard to the ability of candidates
to complement and expand the skills, knowledge and experience of
the Board as a whole. Diversity of the Board can be achieved through
consideration of a number of relevant factors, including but not limited
to independence, age, gender, ethnicity and cultural background,
education, skills, knowledge and experience.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has sent a written request to each of the four INEDs
requesting for their confirmation of independence with reference to
the factors set out in Rule 3.13 to the Listing Rules and other relevant
factors. All INED confirmed that they have satisfied the independence
requirements.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. During the CG Period, all Directors
have complied with the code provision in relation to continuous
professional development.

Every newly appointed Director has been given a briefing session
conducted by professional legal adviser, with a comprehensive induction
package covering the statutory and regulatory obligations of being a
director to ensure the awareness of responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.
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The Company has requested from each director and maintained their
records of training they received during the current year.

The Company continuously updates all Directors on the latest
developments and changes of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

All Directors are encouraged to attend continuous professional
development trainings/seminars arranged and/or introduced by the
Company. During the CG Period, all Directors had participated in
continuous professional development seminar(s) conducted by a lawyer
and arranged by the Company. All Directors have received relevant
reading materials on the topics related to corporate governance and
update on laws and regulations.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees and the holding of offices of the
Group were based on internal equity factors and external market
conditions and will be reviewed from time to time.

The remuneration of the employees including EDs generally consists of:

- fixed salary/allowance — which is set according to the duties,
responsibilities, skills, experiences and market influences;

- pension — which is based on the Mandatory Provident Fund
Contribution Scheme or the local statutory pension scheme;

- short-term variable incentive — which may include commission,
discretionary cash bonus depending on the achievement of short-
term corporate objectives and/or personal targets;

- long-term variable incentive — which may include share options
designed to encourage long-term commitment; and

- other benefits in kind — which may include accommodation,
company car and related services.

The remuneration of Independent Non-executive Directors was at a fixed
annual/quarterly payment and long-term variable incentive.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Throughout the CG Period, the Company had maintained a
Remuneration Committee as required under the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee was composed of three INEDs and chaired by
Mr. 10 Rudy Cheok Kei. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
reviewing and determining and recommending for the Board’s approval
the remuneration, compensation and benefits of Directors and senior
management. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available and accessible on the Company’s website at http.//
www.cyfoundation.com.

During the CG Period, the Remuneration Committee had held 4 physical
meetings for the purpose of considering the remuneration of the

Directors.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee, and the respective
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attendances of the members are presented as follows: ™

Member Attendance K E HEER
IO Rudy Cheok Kei (chairman of committee) 4/4  hEE(ZESEE) 4/4
YONG Peng Tak 4/4  t5¥E 4/4
LAl Hock Meng 4/4  FEBEEA 4/4

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Director for
the financial year under review is set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements in the Annual Report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established as required under the
CG Code. The Nomination Committee was composed of three
INEDs and chaired by Mr.
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available and accessible on the Company’s website at
htto://www.cyfoundation.com.

GOH Hoon Leum. The Nomination
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During the CG Period, the Nomination Committee had held 1 physical
meetings for the purpose of considering the nomination of the Directors.

The composition of the Nomination Committee, and the respective
attendances of the members are presented as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Member Attendance RE HERER
GOH Hoon Leum (chairman of committee) 11 REMN(ZESERE) 1/1
LAl Hock Meng 11 FEERF 1/1
YONG Peng Tak 11 HB¥FE 1/1
AUDIT COMMITTEE BREEY

Throughout the CG Period, the Company had maintained an Audit
Committee as required under the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
was composed of three INEDs and chaired by Mr. LAl Hock Meng.
The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
external auditor, review the interim and annual financial statements before
submission to the Board and the Group’s internal control systems. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available and accessible
on the Company’s website at htto.//www.cyfoundation.com.

During the CG Period, the Audit Committee had held 2 physical
meetings. Annual/interim results and/or internal audit of the Group were
discussed during the meetings.

The composition of the Audit Committee, and the respective attendances
of the members are presented as follows:

REMIEELRME NARRELETRINRE &
REEZZEQ BERZEQM-RBUIFNTESR
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Member Attendance K E HERER
LAl Hock Meng (chairman of committee) 2/2 TEBER(ZESXF) 2/2
IO Rudy Cheok Kei 2/2 P 2/2
YONG Peng Tak 172 1HFE 1/2
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Audit Committee had
performed the following duties:

- reviewed and commented on the half-yearly and the annual
financial report of the Group of the financial year under review
before submission to the Board for adoption and publication;

- met with the auditor and independent accountant to discuss
the financial matters of the Group and reviewed their findings,
recommendations and representations;

- reviewed and approved the terms of engagement and scope of
services of the auditor and independent accountant; and

reviewed the Company’s works on internal control.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remunerations in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year
ended 31 March 2014 provided by the Company’s auditor, ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited, are as follows:

Et “ER-NE=A=1t—RIUHERFE"

2 ERZE
EEITATEE:

1115} 59

— HHEIABRAEERAEEYRFEZYFER
EERBRE ABRREIEZESS  UHEH LT
Ei

—  HEREEIRB SIS AR AEE M
BER UEBREM MBS HR 2

ik R R

—  BE RS AZ AN KB & 5 TE 2 T AR
HEE: &

—  EHNARFEBREEERZ Tk

12 B4 B 57 A

ARRZHRMPELESTMEFEMERIANEE
—NEZ A=+ AL FERHEZLIFEZR
B2 FmmmT

HK$'000 TET
Audit services 678  BAZIRIE 678
Non-audit services 178 SEEAZBRTE 178
Total 856  #BET 856

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
accounts of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the financial year
under review, the Directors have:

- based on a going concern basis;

- selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

- made judgments and estimates that were prudent, fair and
reasonable.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report from page 37 to 38.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing, maintaining and reviewing an
effective system of internal control and safeguarding the assets and the
interests of the Group and the shareholders as well.

The Group has established policies and procedures for approval and
control of expenditures. Pursuant to a risk-based methodology, the
Board plans its internal control review with resources being focused
on higher risk areas. Internal control review has been conducted on
ongoing basis to ensure that the policies and procedures in place are
adequate. Any findings and recommendations would be discussed by
the management and followed up properly and timely.

The Directors had engaged Hanvic CPA Limited to perform an
independent review on the internal control systems of the Group. The
review report showed that the Group maintained an adequate and
effective internal control system and no major control deficiency had
been identified. The scope and findings of the review had been reported
to and reviewed by the Audit Committee.

THE MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

In order to promote transparency, accountability and responsibility in
respect of the operation of a listed company, and for the maintenance of
good corporate governance, the Company assisted by legal advisors and
financial advisors, has notified the Stock Exchange and made relevant
disclosure to the public as soon as practicable of any inside information
of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining effective
communication with the Shareholders of the Company. The Company
establishes various communication tools to ensure the shareholders are
kept well informed of timely information of the Company. These include
the Annual General Meeting, Special General Meetings, the Annual and
Interim Reports, announcements, circulars, notices. Such documents are
accessible on the Company’s website at http.//www.cyfoundation.com.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company believes that an effective shareholder communication
policy enhances its strong culture of disclosure and its commitment to
keeping shareholders informed.

Corporate Governance Report
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The shareholders communication policy (the “Policy”) was established
by the Board to reflect the Board’s belief that shareholders should have
access to the latest information about the Company, utilising, where
practicable, electronic communications together with more traditional
means of communication. The Company has in place policies and
procedures for the purpose of compliance with our continuous and
periodic disclosure obligations as required by the Stock Exchange.

Clear communication and easy access to information are important
objectives of the Company’s communication strategy. Information is
communicated to Shareholders regularly through:

° Announcements, circulars and other releases made to the Stock
Exchange and media;

° Financial reports including annual reports and interim reports;
° Annual general meetings and other general meetings.
o The Company’s website http.//www.cyfoundation.com.

The annual general meetings and other general meetings provide
important opportunities to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and for Shareholders to express their views. The Board
encourages Shareholder attendance and participation at general
meetings.

The Poalicy is reviewed regularly by the Board to ensure its effectiveness.

Shareholders are welcome to provide their queries, comments or
other requests to the Company via a dedicated email address:
shareholder@cyfoundation.com.

By order of the Board
TAM Chong Cheong, Aaron
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 27 June 2014
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FERESMBHBABRAE
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA LIMITED

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
C Y FOUNDATION GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C Y Foundation
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 39 to 131, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company (“the Directors”) are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB E

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 March 2014 and of its
results and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Hon Chung

Practising Certificate Number P0O5988

Hong Kong, 27 June 2014

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEskEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZz—ZT—WF=A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-—mF —E—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T FH&xT FHET
(Restated)
(re&E751)
Continuing operations FEREER
Revenue g 7 57,214 54,002
Cost of sales SHE KA (39,824) (53,900)
Gross profit EF 17,390 102
Other income Eablg A 7 24,006 12,155
Selling and distribution costs SHE Moy SHRK AR (2,446) (1,413)
Operating, administrative and LEITIREE R
other expenses Him (51,983) (47,411)
Loss from operations REKEXBZEE (13,033) (36,567)
Impairment of goodwill EERE - (15,138)
Impairment of various assets FIBEERE (931) (13,882)
Property, plant and equipment written off WIS - HEES I A A IS (99) (1,500
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary [N NGI): = G o= 8 (739) -
Finance costs % E A 9 (4,915) (2,090)
Loss before tax BRBIAIEE (19,717) (69,177)
Income tax FriS®t 10 262 30
Loss for the year from BEREEKZ
continuing operations RKEEEE (19,455) (69,147)
Discontinued operations CRIEEEER
Profit for the year from ERIEEEER 2
discontinued operations AR S A 11 6,690 3,941
Loss for the year EEEER 12 (12,765) (65,206)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hith2H (FR) kE:
Itemns that may be reclassified AEFHSEZE
to profit or loss: BmZEE -
Exchange differences on BMEBIMNEEET
translating foreign operations EEXCEHER 2,677 260
Foreign currency translation reserve HEMBARIE
reclassified to profit or loss upon EFoEEEREY
disposal of subsidiaries SNE B S 29(b) (30,713) -
Total other comprehensive TEERBEHMEE
(loss)/income for the year, net of tax (BR) WEBE (28,036) 260
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEZHABEARE (40,801) (64,946)
FEE¥EEEERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SEBRBEREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E—MmF —F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T F#&xT FHET
(Restated)
(re&:751)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: LT ALEEEREE
(EBR), A
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ FS N
From continuing operations REFERLLER (19,455) (69,147)
From discontinued operations REBKRIEEER 7,696 3,944
Loss attributable to owners of ZIN/NEIEFE DN
the Company JE1h B 18 (11,759) (65,203)
Non-controlling interests A A
From discontinued operations RE DR IEEEET (1,006) ©)
(12,765) (65,206)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for WU TATELXRNEER2E
the year attributable to: (BE8), RS EHE:
Owners of the Company KARHEB A (39,812) (64,948)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R R (989) 2
(40,801) (64,946)
(Loss)/earnings per share R (B8) &R
(HK cents per share) (RS
Basic (loss)/earnings per share FREX (F518) - &F
From continuing operations REFERLEER 15 (1.85) (8.22)
From discontinued operations RE BRI EET 15 0.73 0.47
From continuing and REFER
discontinued operations ERIEREER (1.12) (7.75)

C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e R R

As at 31 March 2014 A=Z—WF=A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mF =%
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
{hg=2 FET FET
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Investment properties "EYE 16 - 190,329
Property, plant and equipment 3 - 2R B 17 76,865 3,250
Intangible assets B EE 18 47,168 -
Goodwill Ha 19 59,050 -
183,083 193,579
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 4,814 4,813
Trade and other receivables H 5 N E b RIS ER 21 23,207 13,732
Bank and cash balances IR1TMIR & &% 22 79,144 28,754
107,165 47,299
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H b FEAT 5K 23 20,720 18,292
Due to related companies A5 B R R FRTE 24 22,998 -
Convertible notes MR EE 25 2,070 19,718
Current tax liabilities BVERTI IR & (& - 94
45,788 38,104
Net current assets REBEEFE 61,377 9,195
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR 244,460 202,774
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible notes AR RE 25 50,001 -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 26 5,660 32,216
55,661 32,216
NET ASSETS EEFEE 188,799 170,558
Capital and reserves EAXRHE
Share capital [N 27 10,538 10,453
Reserves & 178,261 158,997
Equity attributable to owners of KARHEE AEGERS
the Company 188,799 169,450
Non-controlling interests FEIE R i - 1,108
TOTAL EQUITY s 188,799 170,558

The consolidated financial statements on pages 39 to 131 were #H{ N FEIEINE 2 GAVBHREAN T —MNEXA
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 June ~ —+-tBEESSHERFRETNE WHTHIESAEK
2014 and are signed on its behalf by: w=E:

Approved by: T E S

SNEAH Kar Loon
Director

BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan

Director BE EE

TEEXRERRAT
TR CENFEFERS



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRRERAEL
Foreign
Asset currency Capital Non-
Share Share Capital  revaluation Other  ftranslation  redemption Reserve  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve fund losses Total interests Total
RE g -2
B BRHEE ERGE Efiffk HibRE BERE RE A -1 k3 RitEE @i FERES b
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(e T TR ThT T T FEL FEL FEL FEL Fitn TR TR
(Note &) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(fitita) (t3to) (Mizrc)
At1 April 2012 RZZ-=F
mA-A 6969 799811 - 22673 655 2750 1,190 13 oLy 196245 1106 197351
Total comprehensive TEERE
income/(loss) Wi/ (B8)
for the year oE - - - - - 255 - - (65,209) (64,948) 2 (64,946)
Equity-settled share- MRS 2
based payments R ER AR - - 1,183 - - - - - - 1,183 - 1,183

Issue of new shares BATHR 3484 31,359 - - - - - - - 34,843 - 34,843

Issue of convertiole notes 1T AR 2% - - 2,127 - - - - - - 2,127 - 2,121

At 31 March 2013 and

1 April 2013
10,453 831,170 3,310 22,673 (555) 27,845 1,190 135 (726,771) 169,450 1,108 170,558
Total comprehensive TEERAE
(loss) for the year (B8R @ - - - - - (28,053) - - (11,759) (39,812) (989) (40,801)
Equity-settled share- b
based payments BHERAH - - 2,112 - - - - - - 2,112 - 2,112
Issue of ordinary shares ~ EEIRIEEITER
upon exercise of BOLER
share options 27 85 2,450 (1,051) - - - - - - 1,484 - 1,484
Issue of convertiole notes /T AT E I 2% - - 55,565 - - - - - - 55,565 - 55,565
Redemption of RO TRRERE
convertible notes 25 - - (2,127) - - - - - 2,121 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries & BAF 29b) - - - (22,673) 555 - - (135) 22,253 - (119 (119
At 31 March 2014 RZE-mE
ZA=1-H 10,538 833,620 57,809 - - (208) 1,190 - (714,150) 188,799 - 188,799

Notes: Ptz -

@ The capital reserve comprises (i) the fair value of the number of unexercised share  (a) BAREERIRTARARBEZRITREEREHB 22
options granted to employees of the Company and (i) the equity component of TE RARAB TR RE 2 #EmE o (AT
the convertible note issued by the Company which is the difference between the AMBREBE 2 ISREREIATERESEEAERSD
gross proceeds or fair value of the issue of the convertible notes and the fair value ZATEMzEZRE) (BREABERERAER 2 &R
assigned to the liability component, representing the conversion option for the HE) o
holder to convert the notes into equity.

(o)  Other reserve represents the difference between the consideration and the book — (b)  Efb A E R M B 2 T Ui 2 88 oM iz 2 (OB B (5 7]
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities attributable to HPEE AaBERNABEREERMEE-
the additional interest acquired in subsidiaries.

(© Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of China () BEPEARANR ((FEDZEBERERER BT

(the “PRC"), certain subsidiaries established in the PRC are required to set aside
a portion of their profit after income tax. The reserve fund is restricted as to its

use.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HmEHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZz—ZT—WF=A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-—mF —F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FH&xT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REXEBAEBSRLRE
(Loss)/profit before tax BREiAT (E518) 5T
From continuing operations REFELLEER (19,717) (69,177)
From discontinued operations REBKRIEEEE 6,696 8,107
Adjustments for: T ZBEELFE:
Finance costs BB 4,915 2,090
Equity-settled share-based payment RS 2
B An b 4a 1<t 2,112 1,183
Interest income F B U A (150) (225)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEMRE 3,022 7
Changes in fair value of wEMEZ AT EES
investment properties - (13,842)
Depreciation of property, W REREREBEZINE
plant and equipment 6,329 2,924
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR Z WS 29(b) (8,263) -
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary DY) Gy 7= 8 739 -
Impairment of goodwill BN - 15,138
Impairment of various assets FIEEERE 931 16,558
Gain on disposal of property, HEME HE X
plant and equipment B pdl G (122 (11,118)
Property, plant and equipment written off Y - HEs KRR ISE 361 1,500
Operating cash flows before working LEESEEF 2
capital changes KERERE (3,147) (46,855)
Change in inventories FE® (905) 2,828
Change in trade and other receivables B 5 I H Ath e R (8,722 4,730
Change in trade and other payables B MEMENREE) 74 (12,113)
Change in amount due to JETRAE QR FIBE
related companies (4,431) -
Cash used in operations KEFTARS (17,131) (51,410)
PRC enterprise income tax paid EPBEEMEH (137) (279)
Net cash used in operating activities REERFZERAZRESFR (17,268) (51,689)

TEEXRERRAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁaﬁﬁii

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E—MmF —F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T F#&xT FHET
Cash flows from investing activities RETHAESRELRE
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE HWEREE
equipment (47,023) (2,788)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE —HM B R R 29(a) 937 -
Net cash inflow in respect of HERBARZ
the disposal of subsidiaries WReMAFE 29(b) 134,568 -
Interest received 2 U FE 150 225
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEMEE R
plant and equipment RS %’( 199 24,412
Net cash generated from RETHELEZEHSFE
investing activities 88,831 21,849
Cash flows from financing activities METEMSHEERE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings ~ EEE/T R EMEE 29(c) - (15,305)
Repayment of convertible notes EERBREE 25 (20,000)
Interest paid EARFLE (1,706) (245)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRRD PRI 3K 27 1,484 34,843
Issue of convertible notes BT ERE 25 - 20,000
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (M),
financing activities EXEZREFH (20,222) 39,293
Net increase in cash and cash ReRkELEEER
equivalents R ER 51,341 9,453
Cash and cash equivalents )‘5’\¢ zBek
at beginning of year ReFEIAE 28,754 19,725
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate /N FE R & 8) » 3/ 2 (951) (424)
Cash and cash equivalents RERZRERREEE
at end of year, represented by HE UTHEBERR
Bank and cash balances RITRIR e 79,144 28,754
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

C Y Foundation Group Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Bermuda Companies Act. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company (“the Directors”), the Company’s single
largest shareholder is Dato POH Po Lian (the “Single Largest
Shareholder”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the Annual Report. The shares of the
Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the principal activities of the Group are manufacturing of packaging
products for luxury goods in China, and the provision of services
to electronic gaming equipment in Macau. In prior year, the Group
was also engaged in property investment and digital entertainment
business and these operations were ceased after 30 September
2013. Further details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in notes 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 April 2013. HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS”), Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations. The adoption
of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and amounts reported
for the current year and prior years except as stated below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014  #z—
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements”

Amendments to HKAS 1 titled Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology for statement
of comprehensive income and income statement. Under the
amendments to HKAS 1, a statement of comprehensive income is
renamed as a statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and an income statement is renamed as a statement of
profit or loss. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either a
single statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.

The amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive income section such that items
of other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence
the presentation of items of other comprehensive income has been
modified to reflect the change. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments to
HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new and
revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new and revised HKFRSs would have a material impact on its
results of operations and financial position.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties which are carried at their fair values. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the Directors to exercise their judgements in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these financial statements are disclosed in note 4 to
these financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
March. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The
Group has power over an entity when the Group has existing rights
that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties,
to determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the
net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating
to that subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition
is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and
the services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date
fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share of
the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the cost of
acquisition to calculate the goodwiill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest in
the subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive income
(for example, available-for-sale investment), the amount that was
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised on the
same basis as would be required if the previously held equity
interest were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as stated in the
accounting policy below. Impairment losses of goodwill are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition for the
purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured
at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

Foreign currency translation
@  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14

3.

ETEERBER ()

EBAvREE (8)

HBEMBNEAR R EBEES D NEMD
2EBEAER (A HEERE) AIREME
Ewmﬁuz > FRHOB I FTHS ER B B FT 7R

ZAARIETERERR
BEEEFE ﬂﬁ%ﬁ'&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%\ﬁ&
HHUR A ﬁﬁﬂ@%%ﬁ%m TRERIH -

%E&W$ﬂ§ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁ§ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
ZEETERE T X GRRRFT B E 2
JEMR - B ZREBERRA BENER
BRERTTRE U ERET S  AEeskE
BHRME 2 BRMEmER R EEE -

TS A B 2 SRR R s V) PR FEAE A SR B
ZMHBARRNKBEAZABREERBEZA
FRELLGIETH

SEBRE

@ DEERZEIEE

BEEXBMAEMZ TEZHREL

LR EE kR A MR IA
BT A RRZEE R 2T

E%E%ZWW&%%%EE%%E
(

?
g W
anp



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(e

©

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(©  Translation on consolidation (Continued)

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

(i) Al resulting exchange differences are recognised in
the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings
MELTH RIEF
Leasehold improvements
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Over the shorter of 20%-40% or over the remaining unexpired

terms of the leases

HEWEEE

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%-33%

B B RPAERE 20%-33%

Plant and machinery 20%

55 B i 28 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

P 20%

Electronic gaming machines and systems 20%
ERREr Y ES 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Hz—
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property is
measured initially at its cost including all direct costs attributable to
the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at its fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the
investment property are recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date
of transfer is recognised as a revaluation of property, plant and
equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating
leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating
leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates are as follows:

License 2%
Supply and maintenance agreement 10%
Service agreement 40%
Software 20%

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the

statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
(Continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount
of the allowance is the difference between the carrying amount
of the receivables and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition. The amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the recoverable
amount of the receivables can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes which entitle the holder to convert the loans into
a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion price
are regarded as compound instruments consist of a liability and
an equity component. At the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest
rate for similar non-convertible debt. The difference between
the proceeds of issue of the convertible notes and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the embedded
option for the holder to convert the loans into equity of the Group,
is included in equity as capital reserve. The liability component is
carried as a liability at amortised cost using the effective interest
method until extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible notes based on their relative
carrying amounts at the date of issue. The portion relating to the
equity component is charged directly to equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

(@  Revenues from the sales of manufactured goods and trading
of raw materials are recognised on the transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered and the title has
passed to the customers;

(b)  Income from the provision of services to electronic gaming
equipment in Macau and other management services are
recognised when the services are rendered.

(c)  Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term;

(d) Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Employee benefits
@  Employee leave entitlernents

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitiements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(e

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a ceiling of monthly
relevant income of HK$25,000 and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme organised by the government in the PRC.
The Group is required to contribute a specific percentage of
the payroll of its employees to the retirement scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the retirement
scheme. No forfeited contributions may be used by the
employers to reduce the existing level of contributions.

Full-time employees in Macau are members of government-
managed social benefits schemes operated by the Macau
SAR government. The Macau operations are required
to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the social benefits
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the social benefits schemes operated
by the Macau SAR government is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14

3. FESHBER(HA)

BEREF (&)

(o)

RUEET

AEBERFERHERTREF RS /T
BERSEARGIERATBERRIKENGE
(MefEeFE]) ZREBRIERHRK AR
EeatEl - AR EHRRIEEHERRAZ5%
tEHER (HE S A A Z LR /525,000
BT WIMRIR R R FT 8 2 R RIE N
BE&ETR-RESF Bz EERARE
BEENRAFE UFRR—BLEEE
TR AEEZREHRERBESE
EHERR 2 HBEREME -

AR TR 2 L P B BT 2 TR R
BARGTE - AREBERREREH S ZIETE
B0 te R R R AT BN - R EOR (K5 B
Z BRI RN B ISP HRR - (8
FAA BRI A RRIER A #HR
KFe e

B2 2RE B ABRPIF BB 21
ZRATE IR SR N ET B B < RPI
A ARTERAGEINERENR B
BANREE D - AEEH BIRPTH & BUT
Bzt e BN BIEREZE—BE TD
REBFTEIEL R E SR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
©  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees
are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are measured
at the fair value of the services rendered or if the fair value of the
services rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the fair value
of the equity instruments granted. The fair value is measured at
the date the Group receives the services and is recognised as an
expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model of the Group whose business objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale.
If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such investment
properties are measured based on the expected manner as to how
the properties will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

@iy  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(viy  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)() has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources to and
assess the performance of the Group’s various lines of business in
different geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group, the
operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of
a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Discontinued operations (Continued)

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations”, if earlier. It also occurs when
the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, which comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to
fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets
or disposal group constituting the discontinued operation.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except goodwill,
investment properties, inventories and receivables to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements (apart
from those involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

Acquisition of electronic garming machines on trial basis

The Group had certain electronic gaming machines (“these
Machines”) of approximately HK$4,319,000 as at 31 March 2014
which had been acquired within a trial operating period of 90 days
(the “Trial Period”) at the end of the reporting period. During the
Trial Period, the Group has the options to return these Machines
to the vendors. The Group had been entitled to the revenue
generated from these Machines and the associated risk of loss or
damage to these Machines had been passed to the Group during
the Trial Period. Considering these factors and the probability of
returning these Machines, the Group had determined that these
Machines under the Trial Period were accounted for as assets of
the Group at the end of the reporting period.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources

of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

@

(e

Depreciation of property, plant and equijpment and
amortisation of intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated and
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account
of their estimated residual values. The determination of
the useful lives and residual values involve management’s
estimation. The Group assesses annually the residual value
and the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets and if the expectation differs from
the original estimates, such a difference may impact the
depreciation and amortisation in the year and the estimate
will be changed in the future period.

Write-off and impairment loss recognised in respect of
Jproperty, plant and equipment

The write-off of property, plant and equipment are
recognised for the amounts by which the carrying amounts
exceed their recoverable amounts, in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates such as the future revenue and discount
rates. During the year, property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$361,000 (2013: HK$1,500,000) was
written off.

e SRR MIEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014  #z—
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

©

@

Impaimment assessment of intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group performs tests
on whether there has been impairment of intangible assets
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 3
to the consolidated financial statements. The recoverable
amounts of intangible assets are determined based on value
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and assumptions made by management on the
future operation of the business, pre-tax discount rates, and
other assumptions underlying the value-in use calculations.
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of
intangible assets was approximately HK$47,168,000 (2013:
HKS$NIl) (net of accumulated amortisation and impairment
loss of approximately HK$3,022,000 (2013: HK$3,803,000)).

Impairment assessment of gooawill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the fair value less costs of disposal of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. Fair
value less costs of disposal of the cash-generating units is
measured using discounted cash flow projections. At the
end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of goodwill
was HK$59,050,000 (2013: HK$NIl), net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$101,279,000
(2013: HK$107,467,000). Details of impairment testing on
goodwill are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14

4. BEASTHHERMATTAPEEZ
FERF (&)

AT THBER 2 EZHRR (F)

©

@

BIPEZE 2 BEG

R EBR AEESRELRE VT HHRE
MsESATE gt R AR B EERG LR
AE A E 2 AR B S REAR IR (E (B
ErtEET HETERERAEEEMRA
B2 EEPTVEIERT IMRER - BIATRRER R A

RetBFERAEERTEEMRE - NkE
iR - EEEE 2 BRE{EX) /47,168,0007%8
T(ZZE—=F:T%T) (E?DB%E%%&E
5 ROR B B B 493,022,0008 T (—F—=
£F 13,803,000/ 7T ) )

BEZ B EFF

ErRNESEREREETEIEREZ
BEeELBEN I ATEREEXR - BEE
BNz AFEREERATEA IR
SHREBHE - RREHR  wEZEA
$ %8 459,050,000 7L (— T —=F : T
Jt) (BB REHR(EE 18 %101,279,000
BT (T —=49:107,467,000/8 ) ) °
AR ERENR ZFBHNGRE I HR
KHIFE1Q ©



4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
©  Impaimment loss recognised in respect of other receivables

The policy for provision of impairment loss of deposits
and other receivables of the Group is determined by the
management based on the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of accounts and management’s judgment. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of other receivables, deposits and
prepayments, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each deposits and receivables.
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts
of trade and other receivables, deposits, and prepayments
were approximately HK$23,207,000 (2013: HK$13,732,000)
(net of accumulated impairment losses of approximately
HK$45,521,000 (2013: HK$52,417,000)).

U] The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments including trade and other
receivables, bank and cash balances, trade and other payables
and convertible notes are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014  #z—
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

O,

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
a currency that is not the functional currencies of the Group
entities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s entities operating in the PRC and Macau have
minimal exposures to foreign currency risk as most of their
business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and Macau Patacal
(“MOP”) respectively, the functional currencies of those
entities. The foreign currency risk exposure of the PRC
and Macau entities arising from business transactions was
insignificant.

The Group’s Hong Kong entities trade with international
customers and are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to the United States dollars (“‘US$”), EURO (“‘EUR”), Great
Britain pounds (“GBP”), Renminbi (‘RMB”), Singapore dollars
(“SGD”) and MOP.

Pursuant to Hong Kong’s Linked Exchange Rate System
under which HK$ is pegged to USD, management considers
there are no significant foreign exchange risks arising
from the Group’s operation in Hong Kong with respect to
transactions denominated in USD.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2013: 5%) increase and decrease in EUR, GBP and RMB
and SGD against HKS$. 5% (2013: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
(2013: 5%) change in foreign currency rates with all other
variables held constant. A positive/(negative) number below
indicates a decrease/(increase) in loss for the year where
HK$ weakened/strengthened 5% (2013: 5%) against EUR,
GBP, RMB, SGD, USD and MOP.

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Hz—
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For the year ended 31 March

BE=RA=1+—HLEFE

2014 2013

—E-IF —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#&xT FHT

HK$ weakened against: BT A AT EBEE:

EUR BT 87 (82)

GBP £S5 11 27)

RMB N 270 12

SGD hnig ot (289) -

usD E (1,299) -

MOP RFITT (117) -

Increase in loss for the year: AFE BN : (1,337) 97)
This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding WEERAEZFRRUABIT EE AR

trade and other receivables, bank and cash balances, trade
and other payables denominated in EUR, GBP, RMB, SGD,
USD and MOP at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The interest income is derived from the Group’s current and
short-term time deposits that carry interest at the respective
banking deposit rate of the banks located in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

The Group’s bank deposits are short-term in nature and the
exposure of the interest rate risk is minimal and no sensitivity
to interest rate risk is presented.

Credit risk

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks in Hong Kong with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies and
authorised banks in the PRC and Macau with high credit
ratings.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 37% (2013:
27%) and 87% (2013: 73%) of the total trade receivables
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

5 TREREEESERBE (&)

Liquidity risk d REBESER
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors REBRDECREEAIE NEBERR
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed HRFHESMRSZEEENEEERAR
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s NAKREE 2 EEEBRBE S MOREE
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash CRERBTEZKT - BEREBTRYE
flows. The management will closely monitor the cash REEEBEECRERER NS EY
flows generated from operations and the Group's needs NRAMEEINIRE R E WHEEEE
for different types of external financing and will negotiate ETEEREERARE (WER) 2EE
for proper facilities and consider proper means of equity F e
financing as appropriate.
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRFVNAEESRABZHRTEHIH
maturities for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn B TRNDIEBREBMBENRAEEJ8EA
up based on undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities EBEZERAPZRUARSTERE -
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be TERBEMERASHRESTRE - MFIBR
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal AES KRB SHEEREREHRZ
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, MEEERETE -
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve
at the end of the reporting period.
31 March 2014
“E-ME=A=1-H
Total
More than More than @t
On demand one year two year
or within less than less than  Undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years cash flows amount
BRERH BB-F BBRE RER
R-%FRK BRER BREER BeHig EESH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR THx TR FHx
Trade and other payables B REMERT 18,278 - - 18,278 18,278
Due to related companies EEERRFEA 22,998 - - 22,998 22,998
Convertible notes EELES 2,070 2,075 69,965 74,110 52,071
43,346 2,075 69,965 115,386 93,347
PEEXEBERAT

TR CENFEFERS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Statements

5 TREREEESERBE (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) d REBESER (E)
31 March 2013
“Z-Z¥=-RA=1+—H
More than Tot‘al
gt
On demand one year
or within less than Undiscounted Carrying
one year two years cash flows amount
BERH Bih—F KRR
R—FER BREA Beneg FEsE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET T FEL
Trade and other payables BHREMEMR 12,806 - 12,806 12,806
Convertible notes QR ES 20,600 - 20,600 19,718
33,406 - 33,406 32,524
(e) Categories of financial instruments e SWMIEDE
At 31 March
R=A=+—H
2014 2013
—F-NmE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets: ERMEE:
Loans and receivables ER R BB
(including bank and cash balances) (BREEFETEESER) 101,749 38,789
Financial liabilities: SREE:
Financial liabilities at amortised costs WEHRATTEZ SR AE 93,347 32,524
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and

financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their respective fair values.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purpose, the Group’s operating segments and
their principal activities are as follows:

Continuing operations:

Packaging products -
business

Manufacture of packaging products
for luxury goods in China

Provision of services to electronic
gaming equipment in Macau

Electronic gaming -
business

Discontinued operations:

Property investment - Generation of rental income

Digital entertainment - Provision of internet cafe licenses,
business online game tournament services

and online entertainment platforms.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

e SRR MIEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information regarding the above segment is reported below.

(a)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segment:

6.

7 EER (&)

BRLAD M ZERZ2HIT

@)

pan e E S

TRAREBIZAZ2HOAE D 2 Wz Kk
EEN

For the year ended 31 March

BZZR=t-BLEE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
HREERR BALEERY
Packaging products Electronic gaming Property Digital entertainment
business business Total investment business Total Consolidated total
BRERER ETREER @it NERE HERRER #it Gaast
2014 213 2014 213 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 213 2014 213 2014 2013

ZB-mf -%--F ZR-ME “R-CF ZR-QRF CF--F ZB-BEF -5 CB-BE C%-CF CR-ME CT-CF ZR-QRF CF-CF
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000
Tén Tér TEr TEr  TEx TEr TRz TEr  TEx TEr  TEn  TEr  TEr  TEn
TURNOVER: gRE:
Revenus from Refdzr2
external customers Y 47658 54002 9,556 - 514 54002 5794 1109 667 1,798 6461 12892 63675 66804
RESULTS: &
Segment profit/{oss) b/ (B8 1015 47853 (9659 - (B640) (4753 2650 3403 (1909)  (76%9) M (42 (1899) (52,089
Interest income’ HEMA 150 2%
Chang in fair valug of RENEL
investment properties - 13,842
(Gain on disposal of
subsidlaries 8,263 -
Loss on dissolution of
a subsidlary (739) -
Recovery of other receivables
previously writien off/
impaired® EfbElG 15,600 -
Unallocated income REBRA 3 183
Unallocated corporate expenses ~ AARAFRR (235200  (21,141)
Finance costs BHER @915 (2000
Loss before tax BRNER (13021)  (61,070)
# These items were included in other income. # ZEIHE BREEEMEAR -

There are no sales between the reportable segments for
both years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment loss
represents the loss of each segment without allocation
of interest income, change in fair value of investment
properties, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, loss on
dissolution of a subsidiary, recovery of other receivables
previously written off/impaired, finance costs and unallocated
income and expenses. This is the measure reported to
the chief operating decision maker of the Group for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

. st [ i
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DIEFR (F\)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) SBEERARE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and TRAREBZIZHROBE D 2EER
liabilities by reportable segment: BEMT:
At 31 March
R=B=t-B
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
FEEEER BALEEER
Packaging products Electronic gaming Property Digital entertainment
business business Total investment business Total Consolidated total
BEERER EFRVER @it NERE BERAEY @it Geti
04 013 014 013 A4 013 0 01 2014 03 A4 013 N4 A8
“2-mE -3 “E-ME “T--F ZE-mF S3--4 “E-ME CT--F “B-RF ST--f “E-ME CT--F “E-MEF ST--
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSO00
Tén TEr TEr TR TEx TEr  TEx TEr  TEx  TEr TEn  TEr  TEr  TEn

ASSETS: A

Segment assets HiEE 1161 17027 183,152 - - 19167 - 7% - 19193 197318 20010

Bank and cash balances BIRAS LS 19144 28754

Unallocated corporate assets FARLEEE 13,791 2,994

Total assets BEBE 200248 240878

LIABILITIES: 8

Segment liabiltes HiaE 8645 0057 33006 - a9 BRI - - T MG 1620

Convertiole notes 52,071 19,718

Current tax liabilties o %

Deferred tax liabilties 5,660 32,216

Unallocated corporate liabilties 2,067 1,998

Total abiities BESE 101449 70320

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and MERSFRBEDHBEERIEMS :

allocating resources between segments:

—  all assets are allocated to reportable segments BRERTTRIBRSEBRIAR KR DB
other than bank and cash balances and unallocated BEN MBEESHEER 2R
corporate assets; and B &

- allliabilities are allocated to reportable segments other — BRUgREER AHRIESE B
than convertible notes, current tax liabilities, deferred HIEBERRPEDEBEIN Fﬁﬁ

tax liabilities and unallocated corporate liabilities.

BEENRETERNE-

TEEXRERRAT
—T-SE-METERE

=



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, Macau
and PRC.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical location is detailed below:

Turnover by geographical market

6. THEEFR (F)

(©

REEZ XK EMEAEL RPIRF
EX o

ARBEOELEED 2 RANPES 2
W ST

BWETSE D 2 EXER

2014 2013

—E—-NE —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

France 5 671 745
Slovakia Hrdtk s 686 1,426
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) R (FABRRIN 6,461 12,892
United Kingdom ke 5,607 5,628
Germany = 27,848 20,772
Hong Kong N 6,725 10,260
Italy BERH 719 3,898
South Africa S 912 991
United States of America EH 1,122 2,373
Macau JEPY 9,556 -
Other countries HMER 3,368 7,909
Discontinued operations BRI E FETE (6,461) (12,892)
57,214 54,002

Revenue from one (2013: one) customer from the Group’s
packaging products business segment contributing
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group represents
approximately HK$23,295,000 (2013: HK$15,358,000) of
the Group’s total revenue.

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based
on the location of the customers.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

(d)

e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

6. THEEFR (F)

Geographical information (Continued) (0 HEER(E)
The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location are NEEZMIBNEE D 2 IEREEEFT
detailed below: N
2014 2013
—F-NEF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
The PRC i 3,491 191,477
Hong Kong B 738 2,102
Macau SR 178,854 -
183,083 193,579
Other segment information d HftvpIER
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss FFTEEENSE RS D HBEERTALZ
or segment assets: B
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-ALEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations®
BESEER BRESEER
Packaging products Electronic gaming Digital entertainment Consolidated
business business Total business Unallocated total
BEEREYR ETAVER @it HERBER AAR Gad
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
S8-QE T ZR-PEF CF--F ZR-RE “T--F ZR-QBF “2-ZF ZE-QBF CT-F C8-PEF CF-oF
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$000 HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TEn TEr  TEm TEr TRz TEr  TER  TEr TR TEr TR TEn
Addtion to non-current assets REERHEE 2,266 1180 44509 - 46715 1,180 3 540 245 1068 41,028 2788
Amortisation of intangible assets BREERH - - 3,022 - 3,022 - - 7 - - 3,022 7
Depreciation of property, N HERRENE
plant and equipment 799 2,035 5,328 - 6,127 2,035 56 657 146 232 6,329 2,924
Impairment of goodwil et - 15,138 - - - 15,138 - - - - - 15,138
Impairment of inventories 931 5,995 - - 931 5,995 - 25 - - 931 6,020
Impairment of trade receivables A - 6,248 - - - 6,248 - 3 - - - 6,251
Impaiment of other receivables £t H&'W - - - 857 - 1,857 - - - - - 1,857
Recovery of other receivables EkEAEHH/
previously writen off/impaired BEZE R - - - - - - = - 15600 - 15600 -
Recovery of trade receivables WEEHBHELZ
previously impaired BHRR 2,766 - - - 2,766 - - - - - 2,766 -
Impairment of property, NE HERREAE
plant and equipment - 1,639 - - - 1,639 - 459 - - - 2,098
Impaiment of intengible assets M/éﬁj, A - - - - - - - 332 - - - 332
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 122 11,118 - - 122 11,118 - - - - 122 11,118
Property, plant and
equipment written off 9 1,500 - - 9 1,500 262 - - - 361 1,500
* No other segment information for property investment segment for * HE-Z—NFE= ZF=ZfA=+—
the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013. =Nl=:2 “Iﬁ#%%&éfﬁ 2 Bt EE
e
PEEXEBERAT
R NEFERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

7. TURNOVER AND OTHER INCOME 7. EXBFRHMEA
Turnover represents amounts received and receivable for services EEBEAEECDRERE TINBIRER 2R K
provided and goods sold by the Group to outside customers, less Bz B W R BRI - BRI K SE S AR
discounts and sales related taxes. I8 o
An analysis of the Group’s turnover and other income for the year REBZAFEEEBREAMBASTOT -
is as follows:
2014 2013
—E-ImF —EF—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#&T FET
Turnover: EHERE:
Manufacture of packaging products for luxury NP EEEEZ R
goods in China BEREM 47,658 54,002
Provision of services to electronic gaming FRIRFIRHE FIER
equipment in Macau R AR 9,556 -
Rental income (Note) M WA (M) 5,794 11,094
Digital entertainment business G IR T 667 1,798
63,675 66,894
Representing: K&
Continuing operations FEISE T 57,214 54,002
Discontinued operations BRI X
(note 11(b)) (P&E11(0)) 6,461 12,892
63,675 66,894
Note to rental income: T WA E -
Gross rental income He W ALLRE 5,794 11,094
Less: outgoings W (669) (1,312)
Net rental income HeW A F58 5,125 9,782

C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

7. TURNOVER AND OTHER INCOME 7. EXRBRHMEA (&)
(Continued)
2014 2013
—Z—MF —ET-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ExT FHET
Other income: HAb A
Management fee income (note 33) EEEUWA (HIFE33) 2,899 -
Subcontracting income DEEA 743 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE HBEREREZ
plant and equipment e 122 11,118
Interest income FEWA 150 225
Sundry income LGSR GN 810 831
Exchange gains B 5 U 924 -
Recovery of trade receivables WEIERIERECE S
previously impaired (note 21(e)) FEN R (FHEE21(e)) 2,766 -
Recovery of other receivables U [e] 25 BT 2 i SH, IR E 2
previously written off/impaired = 15,600 -
24,014 12,174
Representing: K&
Continuing operations FBREEY 24,006 12,155
Discontinued operations ERIEREER
(note 11(b)) (FMFE11(0)) 8 19
24,014 12,174

TEEXRERRAT
TR CENFEFERS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

8. LOSS ON DISSOLUTION OF A 8. ME—EMEBARZEE
SUBSIDIARY
On 11 July 2013, the Group deregistered & BB EE R (F RZZBE—=FtA+—8 AEEBEXQFMEE
1) AR AT, an indirectly-held subsidiary of the Company. The BEZHMBRARIBRRREYER CRIDBRA
results, assets and liabilities and cash flows of this subsidiary were AR - B AR 2 245 BE - BERR
deconsolidated from the consolidated financial statements of the EREBZHEETERAEE 26 MBEHRE
Group with effect from that day. RE AR
HK$'000
FHET
Other receivables H b B U 3k 745
Other payables E b TR 6)
739
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BMKEAR
2014 2013
—E-mEF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Interest expenses on borrowings wholly HARRAFARNEEHEEZ
repayable within five years: BEZAMERX:
— Bank borrowings —RITEE - 68
— Other borrowing —HMmEE - 177
— Convertible notes — AR EE 4,915 1,845
4,915 2,090
No finance costs were incurred by the discontinued operations for BRIHEEEBREE S NER_T—=F
the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013. A=t —BIEFEIRELSERMBER-

C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX 10. FriSHt
2014 2013
—F-mF —F-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong Profits Tax ERBMEH
— current —ZNHf - -
— over-provision —FRREAME = (130)
- (130)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax — current B F TS B — 2N B 107 108
Deferred tax (note 26) RAERIE (MI5E26) (363) 4,158
(256) 4,136
Representing: K&
Continuing operations FIBICEETS (262) (30)
Discontinued operations BRI E X
(note 11(b)) (M=E11(0)) 6 4,166
(256) 4,136

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax is required since the Group
has no assessable profit for the years ended 31 March 2014 and
2013. Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at a progressive
rate from 9% to 12% on the estimated assessable profit for the
year. No provision for Macau Complementary Tax is required as
the Company’s subsidiary in Macau incurred tax losses for the
year. Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC is 25% for both years.
Tax arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing
in the respective jurisdictions.

HRAEERBE_T-HNFR_F—=F=A
=+t BLFEYERERWGHN  REBFLE
BN THEE  RPIFSH AR AN FE A E
R DA REREI%E12%a1H - R AR A
IORPIZ B A RN A FEELNIAEE &
BRFHRRPIPT S BB - RIFP B EM
BEOE ([REMRFHE]) REEMEHEENR
G0 ARBN P EZ B AR 2 B RN ZM
B4 Z 19 /525% - R EAD RLA R E £ 2 HIAT)
BEREEEZRITREGH

TEEXRERRAT
TR CENFEFERS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax for the year and the
loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong profits tax rate is as

10.

Frig®i (&)

RO TS B B B ARSI A B B RIS B R
M2 SR -

follows:

2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHET
Loss before tax BRELRIEE
(from continuing operations) (CREREKEEEY) (19,717) (69,177)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of A TS BT 16.5%
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) (ZZE—=%:16.5%)
STEZMIEA (3,253) (11,414)
Effect of different tax rates of REAMRDERERE
subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions B A RIREINR 2 & 18 (240)
Over-provision of tax in prior years AR FERIEBERE - (130)
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBWA 2 B2 (3,345) (1,827)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR HRRAY 2 BB E 4,444 7,216
Tax effect of taxes losses not recognised RERBIAE B RS2 2,572 6,365
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised B SC BT AFER 2 Fi A& 12 (698) -
Income tax for the year REFZFTEH
(relating to continuing operations) (FPRIBFERLLEERS) (262) (30)

C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 11. ERIEREEK
On 30 September 2013, the Group disposed of its entire interest RZZE—=FNA=1+H AEER—ZBL
in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Expert Global Investments Limited FEZHHE2ENBRARBRERKEEERA
(the “Disposed Company”), to an independent third party at a AI(THERAR 228 #Exz REREBEAAR
cash consideration of RMB110 million (equivalent to approximately #110,000,0007T (4855 12 #9136,750,000/% 7T )
HK$136,750,000) (“the Disposal”). Further details of the Disposal (THEFHE]) - HEREZE—FFEHRAR
were published in the related circular of the Company dated 18 RIAMAE—=FtA+/\BZHEBREK-
July 2013.
The Disposed Company and its subsidiaries (the “Disposed HEARRAMBAR(HEEE ) 2B
Group”) were principally engaged in property investment and digital BRFERERBEREXG - HEEE 2
entertainment business. The major assets of the Disposed Group BERANMNFBILR ZIREME-

were investment properties located in Beijing of the PRC.

(a)  The profit for the year from the discontinued operations is @ EBRIEKEEBZAFEBNITNOT :
analysed as follows:

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FExT FAET

(Loss)/profit of discontinued ERIEREER
operations (ks518) %= F 11(b) (1,573) 3,941

Gain on disposal of HEBRIELE

discontinued operations Ey vl & 29(b) 8,263 -
6,690 3,941

TEEXRERRAT
TR CENFEFERS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 11. ERIEREEK (E)
R-ZE—=FNOA—HE2-_ZFT—=FNA
=+ AHE BRIECEEREE (B
ARFE G ER) WO :

(b)  The results of the discontinued operations for the period (b)
from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013, which have been
included in the consolidated profit or loss for the year, are as

follows:
Period from
1 April 2013 to Year ended
30 September 31 March
2013 2013
—B-=F HE
MA—HZ —F—=
—g-=  =A=1-A
hWAE=+BHE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ihr=g F#&xT FHET
Revenue W 25 7 6,461 12,892
Cost of sales SHERA (744) (1,447)
Gross profit EH 5,717 11,445
Other income EmA 7 8 19
Selling and distribution costs SHE R AR (27) (1)
Operating, administrative and ~ £8& - 1TIREIE K
other expenses HRZ (7,265) (14,452
Loss from operations REKLEEG BB (1,567) (3,059)
Change in fair value of wEMEL
investment properties NEEEH - 13,842
Impairment of various assets SHEEERE - (2,676)
Loss before tax M EL AT &S 18 (1,567) 8,107
Income tax iCT 10 (6) (4,166)
(Loss)/profit for the period/year ~ ZAERfE,F & (E518) /& 7 (1,573) 3,941

88 C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 11. E& L &K&E XK (&)

(c)  The net cash flows of the discontinued operations dealt with © REEZZ—NOFER-_ZT—=F=A
in the consolidated financial statements for the years ended —+—HUFEZERAEVBEHRREREZE
31 March 2014 and 2013 are as follows: BRIEREEFReMEFELOT:

Period from

1 April 2013 to Year ended

30 September 31 March

2013 2013

—E—=fF HE

WMA—HBHZE —E—=F

—E-—=F —A=+—H

hA=+HEE LEFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Operating activities KT (1,839) (11,244)

Investing activities wEEE 1 (370)
Net cash outflows attributable to ERIEEE XS

the discontinued operations RS mEFRE (1,838) (11,614)

TEEXRERRAT
TR CENFEFERS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. XFEEHE

AEEAFEBERENG, (ER) THSHE:

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting):

2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHET
Continuing operations: HEREER:
Cost of inventories sold HEFER 36,544 53,900
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment VI B REBEITE 6,217 2,155
Amortisation of intangible assets EE E 3,022 -
Property, plant and equipment written off Y - HAER N ER AR I 99 1,500
Operating lease rentals in respect of T REFZ
land and buildings CEHERS 1,595 2,945
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN & 678 650
Staff costs: BTRA:
(including Directors’ remuneration (note 13)): (BIEE£e
(Ff5£E13) ) ¢
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind e EMR
HAth B W) 4& T 26,461 23,041
Equity-settled share-based payment PR oA
A& 10 E 48 1T 2,112 1,183
Pension scheme contributions BIREFTEIH R 1,315 1,672
Total staff costs B IR AR4E%R 29,888 25,896
Provision against various assets: FIEHEERME:
Impairment of inventories FERE 931 5,995
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 RGO E - 6,248
Impairment of property, plant and equipment YIE R RERERE - 1,639
Total impairment of various assets SIEEERERE 931 13,882
Exchange (gains)/losses* BN (W) BB (924) 1,843
Gain on disposal of property, HEME HE R
plant and equipment ** R W (122 (11,118)

C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 12. AFEEBHE (F)

Period from
1 April 2013 to Year ended
30 September 31 March
2013 2013
—E—=fF HE
WMA—HZE —F—=
—E—=fF —A=+—H
hWA=+HEHE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Discontinued operations: BRIEEEEK.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment VI IR REEITE 112 769
Property, plant and equipment written off Y3 - HEER IR R AR 8 262 -
Amortisation of intangible assets mEERE - 7
Operating lease rentals in respect of THREFZ
land and buildings KwEHERS 674 2,113
Staff costs: BT :
(including Directors’ remuneration (note 13)): (BRESH
(Ff5£E13) ) ¢
Salaries, allowances and e 2R
other benefits in kind HiEWRF 2,862 4,951
Pension scheme contributions RIRSET B 195 818
Total staff costs B ITR 4% 3,057 5,769
Provision against various assets: FIEHEERME:
Impairment of inventories FERE - 25
Impairment of trade receivables 2 S EWGRE - 3
Impairment of other receivables, Hfh UK - 2 ® &
deposits and prepayments TERT FORE - 1,857
Impairment of property, plant and equipment Y B REREBERE - 459
Impairment of intangible assets mEERE - 332
Total impairment of various assets BIEAEREATE - 2,676

*

*k

This item was included in other income.

These items were included in other income or administrative expenses.

wok

IR B BEEEMKRAR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ emoluments () E=FH

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-ME=A=1+-HLZFE

13. EERANESHER ZFHMH

Salaries, Equity-
allowances  Retirement settled
and other benefits  share-based Total
Fees benefits scheme payment emoluments
DY $:3
e RER R ZzRH
ik Hitn @A R HEitfaft FMas
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TER TiER TR TR TR
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Sneah Kar Loon BRRELE - 3,730 812 4,542
Mr. Ng Kwok Lun RBMmEE 0] - 810 - 818
Mr. Balakrishnan Balakrishnan
Narayanan NarayananZt & (il - 1,162 18 274 1,454
Mr. Lin Zheying WEEEAE (i) - 1,370 - 274 1,644
Independent non- BYFHITES:
executive directors:
Mr. Lai Hock Meng BERLE 170 - - 55 225
Mr. Yong Peng Tak BRELE 120 - - 55 175
Mr. lo Rudy Cheok Kei e EEAE 170 - - 55 225
Mr. Goh Hoon Leum REMELE ) 170 - - 55 225
630 7,072 26 1,580 9,308

C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EERAUBESHES 2HM
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (%)
E=FM (8

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a)

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-T-=F=-A=+—HLFE

Salaries, Equity-
allowances Retirement settled
and other benefits  share-based Total
Fees benefits scheme payment  emoluments
DX
e RER BRI xWZBR
ik Hi g BRI al ERGR HMast
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TR TR TR T TR
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Sneah Kar Loon BERBEAE - 2,580 - 152 2,732
Mr. Ng Kwok Lun RBMmEE (i) - 1,010 10 101 1,121
Mr. Balakrishnan Balakrishnan
Narayanan NarayananZt & (il - 180 - 81 261
Mr. Lin Zheying WEEEAE (i) - 120 - - 120
Mr. Sik Siu Kwan [22[$i:bt S (iv) - 1,100 8 - 1,108
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Ng Kwok Lun RBMmEE 0] 40 80 - - 120
Independent non- BYFHITES:
executive directors:
Mr. Lai Hock Meng BERLE 170 - - 81 251
Mr. Balakrishnan Balakrishnan
Narayanan NarayananZt & (il 142 - - - 142
Mr. Yong Peng Tak BRELE 120 - - 81 201
Mr. lo Rudy Cheok Kei hEELE 170 - - 81 251
Mr. Goh Hoon Leum REMELE ) 5 - - - 5
647 5,070 18 577 6,312
PEEESEERALT
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EERAUBESHES 2HM

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Re-designated from non-executive director to executive director
on 1 August 2012 and resigned on 1 October 2013

(ii) Re-designated from independent non-executive director to
executive director on 1 February 2013

(iii) Appointed as a director on 1 February 2013

(#&)

@)

E=HmM (8
MisE:

) RZE—ZF\A—ABEFNTESAML
ARWITER YR -T—=F+H AT

(i) RZZE—=F_A—HAHmBIUIFNTES
AERMTES

iy MN-ZE—=F_A-BEZTAES

(v)  Resigned as a director on 11 October 2012 vy RZE——Ft+A+—HEEES
v) Appointed as an independent non-executive director on 22 March (v) R ZFZA-+-_HEZTABT
2013 FRITES
(b) Senior management’s emoluments b) SEREEEEH
Four (2013: three) of the five highest paid individuals of the AEBREESFALRENR (ZE
Group were Directors whose emoluments are set out in the —=F:Z=R)ES BEFHHFEIHEINE
above. For the year ended 31 March 2014, the remaining X AEEEE-T—NF=A=+—H
one (2013: two) senior management’s emoluments of the HFEEH B (ZZE—=F:MB)ak
Group were presented below. The emoluments of one BEEZHFMEIN N T —RH(ZE—=
(2013:two) senior management fell within the band ranging FME)RREEEZHFHNTFEELE
from HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000. 1,000,000/ 7T &3 &
2014 2013
—Z—NF —T—=f
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHT
Salaries, allowances and e RMREMEYET
other benefits in kind 785 1,626
Equity-settled share-based payment LAREER S A5 2 B EE R AR 1 134 70
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR /K48 #5124 7% 15 15
934 1,711
(c) No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the (c) BT NFER=_ZT—=F=F=+—

Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the two years ended
31 March 2014 and 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
each of the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share
From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$11,759,000
(2013: HK$65,203,000) and the weighted average number
of 1,048,098,329 (2013: 841,467,560) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

From continuing operations

The calculation of basic loss per share from continuing
operations attributable to owners of the Company is
based on the loss for the year from continuing operations
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$19,455,000 (2013: HK$69,147,000) and the
denominator is the same as that used above for calculation
of basic loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations.

From discontinued operations

The calculation of basic earning per share from the
discontinued operations attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the profit for the period from 1 April
2013 to 30 September 2013 (2013: year ended 31 March
2013) from discontinued operations attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately HK$7,696,000
(2013: HK$3,944,000) and the denominator is the same as
that used above for calculation of basic loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations.

e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

14. KR

REBZE-Z-—NFR-_T—=F=A=+—HIt
FEST EFURBRIRMIMAS -

15. 3K (BER) BF

@)

BREX (F18) BF
KEFFER ISR

RARHEB ABGERERBERRER
NEHEE A FEAE AR F S B 1 4911,759,000
B (ZZ — = :65,203,000/8 7T)
UNRAFEDEHITEBR 2 MNETF
¥ 2(1,048,098,329 (— & — = F :
841,467,5600% ) 51 & -

KEFFESERET

RAREBAELEREFESEEK 2T
BEREBRERNAREE AREREE
B IS BT 7 AR [ E5 1B 4919,455,00008
T ( ZFE—=%:69,147,000/ 7T ) 5t & - M
FTAEEE F AT E R EHERDR
IHE 3T 2 GIREAREIBAE R -

KEHERIUAEERER

ARBHEABERECRIEREER 2
BREABFNRE_ZT-=FOA—HE
TE-=FEAA=TREE (2T =5
HE-Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE)XRQ
ABHEARERED KR IERERER 2 EHM
#97,696,0007% 7T ( =& — =4 : 3,944,000
ABIT)ETE - MATAESNE LAl ET B 2R
BRENCRIEEEEB 2 SRELER
P A& HR[R
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TR CENFEFERS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(Continued)

(b)

Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share is presented for the years ended
31 March 2014 and 2013 as the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding convertible notes and share options would be
anti-dilutive.

15. 3K (BE) BF (&)

®)

BREEEE

RBEE-Z-—HFR-_T-—=F=H
=t —HIEFE BRITRAREZRTT
FEARERENEREARBETE
WES5SRETER-

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. REYE

2014 2013
—E-—0mF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
At beginning of the reporting period R R & H ) 190,329 175,752
Exchange realignment ME X 32 3,788 735
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29(b)) HEH B AR
(M 5E29(b)) (194,117) -
Change in fair value NTEEE - 13,842
At 31 March R=A=+—H - 190,329
(@) Al of the Group’s investment properties were held to @ AKEEFAURDHESISRKEALEZ
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes and were FIBIREYERA A FERLGE
measured using the fair value model.
(o) The investment properties shown above consisted of ) EXAUREEWERENDBRIRES A
medium term lease land and buildings held in the PRC. HFFZ I REF-
(¢)  The fair values of the Group’s investment properties located © AEERFEZEEMENDTEIRE

in the PRC were valued by Ascent Partners Transaction
Service Limited at 31 March 2013, an independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group.
The valuers had appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. The valuations had been arrived at with
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties in the same locations and conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

17. Y% S RRE

Electronic
Leasehold gaming
land and Leasehold Furniture Office Plant and Motor machines
buildings  improvements and fixtures equipment machinery vehicles and systems Total
HELHR R b7
e HENRHE BHRRE BOERE BERRE RE ES @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T T L TiEn Ti#n T TiEn T
COST.
1 April 2012 14,700 5,133 1,506 4,206 3829 2,495 - 31,868
Exchange realignment - 1 - 15 - 7 - 23
Addtions - 757 382 9 871 679 - 2788
Disposals (14,700) - (261) - 21) (405) - (15,387)
Witten off during the year - 2,140 (403) (2,586) (568) - - (5,697)
At 31 March 2013 and
1 April 2013 - 3,751 1,223 1,734 4111 2,716 - 13,595
Exchange realignment - % 15 2 - 3 1,140 1,250
Addtions - 29 651 2,652 2,193 - 41,288 47,023
Disposals - - - @ - (90) - 92)
Written off during the year - - (43) (920) (14) (388) - (1,425)
Disposal of subsidfaries (note 29(b)) BR - = - @ - (1,295) - (1,208)
Acquistion of a subsiciaries E-HHEAA
(note 29%8) (Hr20) - 904 388 734 - - 30,225 32,251
At 31 March 2014 HZE-ME=F=1-8 - 4,928 2,234 4,223 6,230 1,036 72,653 91,304
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION:
1 April 2012 T-ZENA-A 1,558 2,902 997 2,943 1,511 1,685 - 11,59
Exchange realignment - 1 - 12 - 4 - 17
Provided during the year 131 97 246 959 385 406 - 2924
Impairment loss ) - 1,128 % 405 470 - - 2,098
Eliminated on disposals S (1,689 - - - - (404) - (2,099
Eliminated on written off HRHE - (1,335) (1) (2,585) (162) - - {4197
At 31 March 2013 and
1 April 2013 - 3493 1,223 1,734 2,204 1,691 - 10,345
Exchange realignment - - - - - % 6 30
Provided during the year - 526 178 252 5 M 4,857 6,32
Eliminated on disposals ik - - - - - (15) - (15)
Eiminated on written off iR - - 3) (887) (36) %) - (1,064
Disposal of subsiciaries HERBRF (Hoop)
(note 29(b) - - - - - (1,186) - 1,186)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=f=1-A - 4019 1,358 1,009 2413 687 4,863 14,439
CARRYING AMOUNTS: FHLE:
At 31 March 2014 HZE-ME=F=1-8 - 909 876 3124 3817 349 67,790 76,865
At 31 March 2013 RZF-=f=f=1+-H - 258 - - 1907 1,085 - 3250
(@) During the year ended 31 March 2014, the carrying amounts of the (a) BE-TNF=A=1+—BIEFE AEEEE
Group’s property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$361,000 £ E%9361,000/ 70 (=Z— =4 : 1,500,000/8 7T )
(2013: HK$1,500,000) were written off. P/ ERR T G TRE §i
(b) During the year ended 31 March 2013, as a result of the greater-than- (o) HEZZT—=F=-"A=+—HILFE HRELE

expected poor operating performance of the Group’s packaging products
and digital entertainment segments (“these Segments”), the Group
carried out a review of the recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment of these Segments. The review led to the recognition of an
impairment of approximately HK$2,098,000 for the year ended 31 March
2013. The estimates of the recoverable amount of the relevant assets
were based on the higher of their estimated fair values less costs of
disposal and values in use.

EOREMREERED I ([ZENH)) 248
KERBRESR AEBECRIREDHZWE -
BERBEZATRE B ERTE AEER
HE-Z-—=F=-A=-+ - BULFEEIRED
2,098,000/ 7T © A & E 2 fh 5T AT U Bl & B8 DA
AATEREEXRFNEFEREEME 2Re &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

At 31 March 2013

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BLEE
Supply and
maintenance Service
agreement  agreement License Software Total
HRER
REHZE PR i = JEER B @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
COST: Pt
At 1 April 2012 NZZE——FMA—H - - 32,904 3,440 36,344
Exchange realignment Rk - - 137 18 155
Written off during the year FRME - - (32,696) - (32,696)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 RZZ-=F=R=1+—-Hk
—2-=%MA-A - - 345 3,458 3,803
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMHBAR - - (345) (3,458) (3,803)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 29(a)) neE — R B A A (H329()) 47,952 2,238 - - 50,190
At 31 March 2014 RZE—mF=A=+—H 47,952 2,238 - - 50,190
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION R B RORE
AND IMPAIRMENTS:
At 1 April 2012 R-E——FWA—H - - 32,566 3,440 36,006
Exchange realignment [ X A% - - 136 18 154
Provided for the year AEERE - - 7 - 7
Impairment loss REESE - - 332 - 332
Eliminated on written off bl g - - (32,696) - (32,696)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 R-T-=F=ZA=1+-8kK
“ZT-=FmA—H - - 345 3,458 3,803
Provided for the year REERE 2,547 475 - - 3,022
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - - (345) (3,458) (3,803)
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE-NF=A=+—H 2,547 475 - - 3,022
CARRYING AMOUNTS: KEeR:
At 31 March 2014 R-E-NE=A=+—H 45,405 1,763 - - 47,168

WZZ—=5=A=+—H -

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18. R EE (&)
The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its EERNAEEEFHRESCEERRAZETM
intangible assets during the year ended 31 March 2014, having N AEBEREEST—OF=-A=+—H1E
regard to the latest market conditions of the operating performance FERNBFEE 2 JREISHE HERRER
of the Group’s electronic gaming business. The supply and FURRG HEE PR EAEEE FELERD
maintenance and service agreements are allocated to one of the Fb 2 B —(ER 4455 - $ERE & & 2 AT el & FE A
casinos of the Group’s electronic gaming business segment. The RARIR &R EEAEREBEEE - FTA 28R
recoverable amount of the relevant assets has been determined on RE1T7.41% °
the basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow method.
The discount rate used was 17.41 per cent.
The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of ERIANEEBGIRE RS 2 S ERRIFER
its intangible assets during the last year, having regard to the FEAEBEEREFRIBREEE 2T KE S
persistent unfavorable operating performance of the Group’s digital B BB AEEREBEE-_ZE—=F=A
entertainment business. The review led to the recognition of an =+ —HIEFERZFEBERERZERERR
impairment loss of approximately HK$332,000 during the year {BE1E4)332,000/8 7T © HEEE & 2= 2 AT Bl & B LA
ended 31 March 2013 for the license, which had been recognised B A FEREENANEFABEME CRSE
in profit or loss for that year. The recoverable amount of the T8
relevant asset had been determined on the basis of the higher of
its estimated fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
GOODWILL 10. &
2014 2013
—Z-ImF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
COST: B
At beginning of the reporting period RS ) 107,467 107,467
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWE AR (6,188) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 29(a)) Uy B8 — R BT BB 2 A)
(P 3E29(a) ) 59,050 -
At 31 March MZA=+—8 160,329 107,467
IMPAIRMENTS: A
At beginning of the reporting period Rk s ) 107,467 92,329
Impairment loss REEE - 15,138
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWE QA (6,188) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 101,279 107,467
CARRYING AMOUNTS: IR & #E
At 31 March W=A=+—8 59,050 -
PEEXEBERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

19. GOODWILL (Continued) 19. HE (&)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The carrying
amount of goodwill had been allocated to CY Management Limited
(“CYML”) of electronic gaming business segment.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined on the basis
of their fair value less costs of disposal using discounted cash flow
projections (level 3 fair value measurements). The key assumptions
for the discounted cash flow method are those discount rates and
turnover during the forecast period as adjusted by marketability
discount applied to valuation of equity interest of privately-held
company. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGUs. Turnover are based on past
practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets for the next nine years.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the Group’s
revenue from electronic gaming business is 16.41%.

At 31 March 2014, goodwill of HK$59,050,000 was allocated to
CYML of the electronic gaming business segment.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

20. INVENTORIES 20. &
2014 2013
—F-NmE —F-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Raw materials R 989 1,976
Work-in-progress TR m 1,651 1,714
Finished goods BURK o 2,174 1,123
4,814 4,813
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. EZRHEMEBRRK
2014 2013
—2-mE —T=%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables H 5 EUGK 7,635 14,562
Less: Impairment losses BB EEE (3,220) (6,251)
4,415 8,311
Other receivables H b sk 17,086 7,700
Less: Impairment losses BB EEE (3,000) (5,976)
14,086 1,724
Deposits and prepayments Ee RTEMNK 14,007 13,887
Deposits paid for game software TR KRR
development and licenses BftiZe 30,000 30,000
44,007 43,887
Less: Impairment losses BB EEE (39,301) (40,190)
4,706 3,697
23,207 18,732

TEEXRERRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(@)

The Group grants a credit period normally ranging from cash
on delivery to 30 days to its trade customers. For those
customers who have established good relationships with the
Group, the credit period may be extended to 120 days.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that the recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly.

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately HK$3,220,000 (2013: HK$6,251,000) was
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired trade receivables mainly related to customers that
had prolonged their repayment due to unexpected financial
difficulties.

At the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of
the trade receivables, based on invoice date and net of
impairment losses, is as follows:

21. EFREMEWRF ()

AEE-RETHEZFELPN FEUR
ENRZEEH -REAEEREZTIRITH
FEzEPME EEHAIEE120H -

BRI ZRUGR 2 BER RN BRERT
R BRIFAEEERRO AR E AR
MEEERIERR - FUER T R EEEE
BHEMEE AR -

NoZE—ME=A=+—8 A&EExZ
5 FEUL N 493,220,000/ 70 ( — T — =4
6,251,000 7T ) BB ETE AR E © R EE
BREZ B HEWREES RERETER
U BRREMERERBZ2EF -

RBEHR REBLZ A E 5 EUGR
(IR ERIRR) FL Z ARk DTN T :

2014 2013

—E-mF —E—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET F#ET
Within 60 days 60H 2,717 5,759
61 to 90 days 61%Z90H 150 140
91 to 180 days 91%180H 215 1,653
181 to 365 days 1812365H 1,333 759
4,415 8,311

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

(Continued)

@

At the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of
trade receivables that were neither individually nor collectively
considered to be impaired is as follows:

21. EFREMEWRF ()

R|EHR WEE R ARERRRSRE
ZBZEMGRZ R ITIT :

2014 2013

—E—mEF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired BR 8 B 75 ORE 2,164 6,112
Less than 60 days past due #HEIBOH 2 A 514 422
61 to 90 days past due #HA61Z=90H - 437
91 to 180 days past due #HI912=180H 39 922
Over 180 days past due #HI180H A 1,698 418
4,415 8,311

Trade receivables that were not past due relate to a wide
range of customers who has no recent history of default. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

B2 5 W BRI R EE N
R ETEP NEEY BERZEHER
R AR E AR e

BERMERREZE S RKFS R EARE
BAARMEBLHZEMNBYLES, &
PBEES BIEERS  BANZEER
EHRERE LRANEEEEYESE
REF A KRR A 2R E - R
SEY ERZFERFT A EMERR-

TEEXRERRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21.
(Continued)

(e)  The movements in impairment losses of trade receivables

B 5 R EARYK ()

© EBZEURZREREZEESNT:

are as follows:

2014 2013

—E—mF —_ 5=
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT T
At beginning of the reporting period RS H ) 6,251 -
Written off against trade receivables B 5 I W F 85 (265) -
Provided during the year FNEE - 6,251
Reversal during the year (note 7) FREEE (M5E7) (2,766) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 3,220 6,251

The movements in impairment losses of other receivables,

h EMERR e RBARZIREBEZ

deposits and prepayments are as follows: FHUT
2014 2013
—Z—mF —ZE—=f
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
At beginning of the reporting period NEE=R =R 46,166 44,301
Exchange realignment PE i AR 60 8
Written off against other receivables H i KR 8 (105) -
Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A F (3,220) -
Provided during the year FNREE - 1,857
Reversal during the year FAEL (600) -
At 31 March R=A=+—8 42,301 46,166

Included in the impairment losses of other receivables,
deposits and prepayments are individually impaired other
receivables and deposits with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$42,301,000 (2013: HK$46,166,000)
which are due to long outstanding and/or default of
payment. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. Impaired amounts were directly written off against
deposits and receivables when there was no expectation of
recovering any amount.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. EFREMEWRF ()
(Continued)
(@ The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other @ AEEZESRHAMBWZBRE® N
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: THEEIE :
2014 2013
—E-@ImF —ET—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT T
EUR BT 1,821 1,404
RMB AR 8,143 2,106
Usb ETT 5,753 5,271
GBP ES 7 317 541
MOP SEPITT 4,261 -
HKS BT 2,912 4,410
23,207 13,732
22. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 22, RITRBELEER
At the end of the reporting period, bank and cash balances REEBR BITRASERBEEAEEREZ
comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits R MREHHAA=ZEASINA T 2 EERTHE
with an original maturity period of three months or less. Bank o RITHEIEEF0.001EE0.385E (ZE2—=
balance carried interest at market rates ranging from 0.001% to & FF0.001BE0.385F ) 2 HFI KB

0.385% per annum (2013: 0.001% to 0.385% per annum).

At the end of the reporting period, the bank and cash balances RBERAR AREUAREEEZRITRIAS
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) amounted to 482 52,476,0008 7T ( —ZZF — = 4F : 2,846,000/8
HK$2,476,000 (2013: HK$2,846,000). Conversion of RMB into 7)o AR HAR R HNE R B SF A BN B IR
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange il o

Control Regulations.

TEEXRERRAT
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

22. BANK AND CASH BALANCES (Continued) 22. R{TRIA &R (&)

AEBZRTRASEBRZREASEATIES

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and cash balances are

denominated in the following currencies: FHE:
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHT
HK$S BT 73,478 18,720
RMB AR 2,476 2,846
Us$ T 975 6,479
EUR BT 634 707
MOP SRPITT 1,579 -
Others Hb 2 2
79,144 28,754
=%
23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EFREHMEMNTRK

2014 2013
—Z—MmF —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHBT
Trade payables ) INEA 1,984 2,667
Accrued expenses and other payables JEFTE R R E A B R 18,736 15,625
20,720 18,292

(8  Atthe end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of trade @ MMEMR REZAHNBEEZENRE

payables, presented based on the invoice date, is as follows:

“®
M2 BRI DT Z25 20T

2014 2013

—E—MmF —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR FHET

Within 60 days 60H A 1,501 1,173
61 to 90 days 61290H 64 652
91 to 180 days 91£180H 37 201
181-365 days 1812365H - 136
Over 365 days 3658 A 382 505
1,984 2,667

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)

(b)  The average credit period on purchase of goods ranges
from 30 to 90 days (2013: 30 to 90 days). The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are settled within the credit time frame.

(c) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
payables are denominated in the following currencies:

e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

23. EEZREMENAR (F)

KEER 2 FHEEHN TI0EWA (=
T —=F 302901 ) - AEEE HIE 75
BEREERE WREMBENREEE

B REZRAB(E -

REH 285 M EAMEN R ZBRm A
THRESIE:

2014 2013

—E—MF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHET
RMB AR 4,007 12,094
HK$ BT 3,440 2,745
usD ETT 11,011 1,180
EUR BT 1,724 2112
GBP e 82 161
MOP SEPITT 456 -
20,720 18,292

24. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The above advance is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
repayment terms. The related companies are ultimately controlled
by the Single Largest Shareholder.

24, BANBREQATKE
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Q)

The convertible notes with the nominal value of HK$69
million (the “Weike Notes”) were issued to Weike (G)
Management Pte Ltd, a company wholly owned by
the controlling shareholder of the Company, as the full
consideration for acquisition of 100% interest in CY
Management Limited (formally known as Weike (G)
Management Macau Limited) on 16 September 2013 (the
“Completion Date”). Further details on the acquisition of
CYML is presented in note 29(a) below.

The Weike Notes are convertible to ordinary shares of the
Company at any time between the date of issue of the
Weike Notes and 16 September 2016 (the “Maturity Date”).
The Weike Notes are convertible to 460,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each per HK$0.15 loan note.

If the Weike Notes have not been converted, they will be
redeemed at par on the Maturity Date. Interest of 3 per cent
will be paid semi-annually until the Maturity Date.

On the Completion Date, the Weike Notes with its fair value
of approximately HK$104,709,000 dividing into the liability
and equity component are as follows:

- The fair value of the liability component of
approximately HK$49,144,000 is determined by
using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible
notes and is carried as a liability at amortised cost
using the effective interest method until extinguished
on conversion or redemption which will be the third
anniversary of the date of issue of the convertible
notes. The liability component is determined by
applying the effective interest rate of 15.3%. Current
portion of liability component of approximately
HK$2,070,000 represents interest payable within one
year; and

- The fair value of the conversion option is
approximately HK$55,565,000 carried as a equity
component of the convertible notes included in
shareholders’ equity.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
Annual Report 2013/14

25. ARRERE

(1)

R FE [AWelke (G) Management Pte Ltd
(RARERBRREERA 2 AR))EITH
1B69,000,00078 7T 2 AI#RAR =15 ([ WeikeSE
B tEAR-ZE—=FAB+/ B (%
MEEDWETSERERAT (ATEE
RHOEERFIARE QT )100%EE 2 28
REB- WEFEFEBZE—FFBERTX
Ft3E29@) 251

WeikeZ 1% o] AWeikeZIE 2 THHE —F
—~FNATRA (TRI8E ) BipER
HBRAN R EBI - WelkeZiE Al BN E
REIK0.1578 7T 8 #2 A460,000,0008% & i
HECOIE L EBM

WWekeSRE R EHE i - Al NI A RE
B E » WelkeZE 15 1 B - S ZQE 3 7
BEERHARL-

A FERK B 8 A B 49104,709,0007%8 7T 2
WekeZEIZ Nt A RN BEENMERD

o

—  BEHD 2~ F{EH49,144,0007 7T
FARSETAT MR ER 2 TIEE R
BT WA AT H SRR SR AR
FIRRAGE  EEEEIR R
ZEBTHYE - AFERLRRER
Bl BEBDIEERFIE15.3%E
TE o BERD 2 BIERER4 492,070,000
BILIEAR—FRINZHE &

— BN 2 A FEH A55,565,00008
TL @ ARSI AR ANRE R 2 AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

@

The convertible notes (the “ldea Sino Notes”), with the
nominal amount of HK$20,000,000, were issued to Idea
Sino Limited on 6 August 2012. The Idea Sino Notes were
convertible to ordinary shares of the Company at any time
between the date of issue of the Idea Sino Notes and their
maturity date on 6 August 2013. The Idea Sino Notes
were initially convertible to 349,040,140 ordinary shares of
the Company at HK$0.0573 per share. As a result of the
share consolidation effective on 18 September 2012, the
conversion price of the outstanding notes was adjusted
from HK$0.0573 to HK$0.573 per share, and the aggregate
number of ordinary shares of the Company falling to be
issued upon exercise of the conversion rights attached
to the notes in full was adjusted from 349,040,140 to
34,904,013 ordinary shares of the Company.

Effective from 8 November 2012, being the day immediately
after the record date of the open offer as set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 9 November 2012, the
conversion price of the outstanding Idea Sino Notes was
further adjusted from HK$0.573 to HK$0.5073 per share.
The aggregate number of ordinary shares of the Company
falling to be issued upon exercise of the conversion right
attached to the Idea Sino Notes was further adjusted to
39,424,403 ordinary shares of the Company.

The Idea Sino Notes were fully redeemed by the Company
on the maturity date of 6 August 2013.

e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz —Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

25. ARKRER (&)

@

ARBRR—ZE——F/)\ A7XHAlldea Sino
Limited®% 17 T & £20,000,0007 JT 2 7] #2
BEZ= 4 ([ldea SinoZ=#E ) ° Idea SinoZE &
AIRETHBERBA(ZZE—=FN\A
ANE)HRERER AR AR 2 EB-
Idea SinoZE 1% #1277l 12 & §20.05737# T 8
#24349,040,14008 AN A R 3B - A AR
MAEREZZ—ZFNATNBER &
EHMEIR 2 IR E R EAR0.05738 L H
BEFR0E7IE L MR EEATH ek
BEE2EITERARITZ AR R L MARBE
B2 349,040,140k A A &) LB AR E
34,904,013& AN &) E @Ak

BE-ZE——F+—AN\H (AEEARQF
AfE-—ZT——F+—ANBZERME
AFABE AL EH) B REER
ldea SinoZ= 1% 2 B3R (E i — 0 B T %0.573
7B TR E B AR0.507378 7T © A Idea Sino=
BETI E R T R AT 2 AR R
AR 4R B2 — P B 530,424,403/ A
NSESER &

RATEREHA (ZE—=FEN\AXA)
FHIE Bl dea SinoE 1 °
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

25. ARKRER (&)

The movements of the liability component of the Group’s AEEBBRBREAEXHEBNT
convertible notes are as follows:
Weike Notes Idea Sino Notes Total
WeikeZ & Idea SinoE & et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET FET
Nominal value of convertible EA T——_FN\AXAH
notes issued on 21T 2 AR R B
6 August 2012 ﬁfﬁ - 20,000 20,000
Less: equity component B R E D - (2,127) (2,127)
Liability component RETHBZE8EID
at date of issue - 17,873 17,873
Interest charged Bk FE - 1,845 1,845
Liability component at R-ZZE—=%=H
31 March 2013 and =t+t—HRkZZT—=F
1 April 2013 MA—BZ8EE> - 19,718 19,718
Fair value of convertible BETABRKRREEZ
notes issued NS 104,709 - 104,709
Less: equity component W i E D (55,565) - (55,565)
Liability component BEHD 49,144 19,718 68,862
Interest charged for the year REZMBRZFE 4,033 882 4,915
Interest paid for the year REEZNZFE - (600) (600)
Interest transferred to EREEZH R R
accrued charges (1,1086) - (1,106)
Redeemed during the year FAIER - (20,000) (20,000)
Liability component at RZZT—MF=A
31 March 2014 =t+—HZzAEHH 52,071 - 52,071
Interest payable within one year B —FRZ 2 F 8
classified as current liabilities (DBERRBAE) (2,070) - (2,070)
Non-current portion ERBEL D 50,001 - 50,001
Notes: (a) The interest charged on the Weike Notes for the period is MisE: (a) REAI B Weike R IR 2 R B TS B H
calculated by applying the effective interest rate of 15.3% per BEBDEA53% 2 ERFHEGHHE -
annum to its liability component.
The interest charged on the Idea Sino Notes for the period is REAfEI Btidea SinoRE MR 2 A B JThiE R
calculated by applying the effective interest rate of 15.26% per HEBEIH D EMA15.26%2 BEEF R
annum to its liability component. Ho
(b) The carrying value of the liability component of the convertible (b)

notes at 31 March 2014 is close to its fair value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Hz—
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26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 26. BELEBEAR
Change in
fair value of
Intangible investment  Revaluation of
assets properties properties Total
REMEZ
BVEE NEEEE MEER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2012 W-Z——FmA—H - 20,231 7,710 27,941
Exchange realignment fE 5% - 84 33 117
Charged to consolidated RixE Bm Ak
profit or loss - 4,158 - 4,158
At 31 March 2013 and RZZE—=F=A
1 April 2013 =+—8k
—T-=fWA—H - 24,473 7,743 32,216
Exchange realignment ME N R - 487 154 641
Acquisition of a subsidiary W g —FM B AR
(note 29(a)) (P E29()) 6,023 - - 6,023
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRA
(note 29(b)) (P E29(0) ) - (24,960) (7,897) (32,857)
Charged to consolidated RirEBR AN
profit or loss (363) - - (363)
At 31 March 2014 RZT—MmF
—A=+—H 5,660 - - 5,660

At the end of the reporting period, subject to agreement by tax
authorities, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$28,315,000 (2013: HK$56,159,000). No deferred tax assets
have been recognised in respect of these tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future income stream. At 31 March 2014,
approximately HK$264,000 (2013: HK$4,612,000) included in
the above unused tax losses will expire within five years from the
year of assessment they relate to. The remaining balances may be
carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends in respect of profits earned by the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards (the “Post-
2008 Earnings”). Deferred tax has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to the Post-2008 Earnings as there were
no Post-2008 Earnings for the years ended 31 March 2014 and
2013.

RER BESHERERE AEEZ XK
&) AR B E18494528,315,000/ 7T (_ T4
56,159,000/ 7T ) ° A A T A] B AT AR R UL A7
ZEREBRTEBRELCHRBEE-R_Z
—WE=A=+—8 Ll XEAHEEEPL
264,000/ 7T ( =& — =4 : 4,612,000 70) 57
FERA RS FE AT R 2 - BB AT IR 2R 45
Lo

RIBPECEMEHE BTN \F—HA—H
EEAEEREMBARRIEN ((Z2TN
FRENDMEIRZ RS AHARIENT - BN
HE_Z-MER-_ZT-—=F=ZA=+—HI%F
B |G T N\FREN A AEELR
BESEMBHREAN_FZTN\FRANEE 2K
B ZRERT B AT TR B

TEEXRERRAT
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
2014 2013
—E—mEF 5=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T FET FHET
Authorised: JETE
30,000,000,000 30,000,000,0000% (=& —=
(2013: 30,000,000,000) ordinary £ : 30,000,000,0004% )
shares of HK$0.01 EEEEC.OVE T B () 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRET
1,053,756,548 (2013: 1,045,307,548) 1,053,756,548M ( — T —=
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each F 11,045,307,5480% )
FREBEC.OEIL EB®E (), (© 10,538 10,453
Movement of the number of shares issued and the share capital REZDETRMHEE RRAEBHINT
during the current year is as follows:
Number of Share
share issued capital
ERITROEHE ;&N
Notes ‘000 HK$’000
ihg: T % FHET
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012~ R—Z——#=A=+—H
E-_ZTE——FA—H 6,968,710 6,969
Share consolidation & 1n & O (@) (6,271,839) -
Open offer NGRS (o) 348,436 3,484
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 R -ZT—=%=H=+—H
kZZE—=FmHA—H 1,045,307 10,453
Exercise of share options granted ERHERERTE © 8,450 85
At 31 March 2014 R-ZZT—NF=A=+—8H 1,058,757 10,538

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 17 September 2012, every
ten ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each in the issued and unissued share
capital of the Company were consolidated into one consolidated ordinary
share of HK$0.01 each in the issued and unissued share capital of the
Company with effect from 18 September 2012.

On 29 November 2012, the Company issued and allotted 348,435,516
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at an issue price of HK$0.1 per ordinary
share on the basis of one offer share for every two shares held on 7
November 2012, the record date of the open offer. Net proceeds from
such issue amounted to approximately HK$34,843,000, out of which
HK$3,484,000 and HK$31,359,000 were recorded in share capital and

share premium, respectively.

During the vyear, the subscription rights attaching to 7,300,000 and
1,150,000 share options were exercised at the subscription price of
HK$0.1292 and HK$0.47 per share respectively (note 28), resulting in
the issue of 7,300,000 and 1,150,000 additional shares of HK$0.01
each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$1,483,000, out of which HK$85,000 and HK$2,450,000 were
recorded in share capital and share premium respectively.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consist of equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and

reserves. The Directors review the capital structure on a regular

basis.

As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of

capital and the associated risks, and take appropriate actions to
adjust the Group’s capital structure. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior periods.

e SRR MIEE
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27. B (48)

o :

(@ RER-B--FAATLRRBZEBRE
R SHRADFACBTRABTRARSRE
{B0.001/8TL2 HRMABA B A —BARABRHITR
RETBRAPEEOOVEL L AHT AR B =T
—ZEAATNBRER:

(b) RZZ—=F+—A=+hB RRARBITEE
%£348,435,516% T A EE0.018 T 2 F Ak -
TEAREBREBRONET EEAR_T—_F
+—A+tB (MARBE LB ) BHBEMRKR
IR0 3 — R ERD - BT FIEFENR
34,843,000/ 7T+ H #3,484,000/% 7T 131,359,000
BT BRI A R A&7 4 B AR ©

() F A+ 7,300,0001% K. 1,150,000 B AR # Fr i 2 52
% 1 5 BHZ 5 820.12927%8 7T }0.4774 7T 2 RIEE
HEATEE (P 5128) 28 $H 41 8% 177,300,0008% K&
1,150,000/% F AR E1E0.0178 7T 2 R 1% + HIBRBASZ Al
2 HAH SR EH A1,483,00057T - HAF85,000/#7T
$:2,450,0007% 7T 53 Bl F AR AR K A& A7 i (B A AR ©

AEEEREERNARRAEE S EREARE
g FE BB EERER TERERRANE
S ONEIE Y

FEBERERBEARRER AELERS B
FEECHETRANREE EFTMRNELS
BeERIRTZ — 80 EEEREAZRAR
HEARR  ARBGEZTHAREREBEZER
g - AKRE EERRRALSHAITE-
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28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 28. LR zROERGNARS

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants include directors, full-time
employees, senior executives and consultants of the Group. The
Scheme has been adopted since 28 September 2012 and unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of shares falling to be issued in respect of
the unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted
under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise,
to 10% of the shares of the Company as at the date of approval
of the Scheme. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of shares options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The subscription price will be determined at the discretion of the
Directors, provided that it shall not be less than the higher of the
closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the offer date, the average of the closing prices of the shares as
shown in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date and the
nominal value of the share on the offer date.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

28. ?*Eﬁﬁ‘ﬁiﬁZHﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%
&

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows: EREREEAFBAT

Number of
Share share options Exercise
options  Grantee granted Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price
2R
BRE ARA BREE RiHAH BEH T 18
(@) Directors 5,700,000 14 January 2013 14 January 2013 14 January 2013 to 0.1292
g2 “T-ZE-AFTEA -F-=F-A+tMWmA 13 January 2018
ZE-=f-ATWmBEZE
“E-\F-A+=H
Staff and consultants 6,000,000
EIRER
() Directors 4,300,000 10 January 2014 10 January 2014 10 January 2014 to 0.47
% “Z-WF-A+B Z—E-WF-—AtH 9 January 2019
“Z-WE-A+HE
“E-NE-ANH
Staff 1,300,000
8T
(© Directors 2,000,000 10 January 2014 10 January 2014 to 1 December 2014 to 0.47
B —Z-mE-ATHA 30 November 2014 30 November 2019
“T-lE-A+BE “E-ME+-A-BE
“E-NF+-A=TA  —T-A5t+-A=1EH
Directors of a subsidiary 800,000
—ANERA ES
(d) Directors 2,000,000 10 January 2014 10 January 2014 to 1 December 2015 to 047
X “T-EE-R+H 30 November 2015 30 November 2020
—Z-ME-A+BE —Z-RE+-A-BE
“E-RF+-A=tH -—ZT-TE+-F=1EH
Directors of a subsidiary 1,000,000
—BMBARCES
() Directors 2,000,000 10 January 2014 10 January 2014 to 1 December 2016 to 0.47
% —Z-WF—-A+H 30 November 2016 30 November 2021
“Z-WE-A+HE ZE-AE+ZA-HE
“E-NFT-AZTHE  —T--45+-F=1H
Directors of a subsidiary 1,200,000
—BRBRAZES
Ul Directors 2,000,000 10 January 2014 10 January 2014 to 1 December 2017 to 0.47
B —Z-mE-ATA 30 November 2017 30 November 2022
“T-lE-A+BE “E—tE+-A-HE
“E—+E+-f=+B —Z--#+-HA=1H
Directors of a subsidiary 1,400,000
—ANBRA ES
@) Directors 2,000,000 10 January 2014 10 January 2014 to 1 December 2018 to 0.47
X “T-EE-ATH 30 November 2018 30 November 2023
—Z-ME-A+BE —2-\E+-A-BZE
“E-\F+-A=tH C-—ZT-=4£+-F=1H
Directors of a subsidiary 1,600,000
—AMBARCES
PEEESEERALT
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28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 28.
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

If the options remain unexercised after a period of 5 years from
the date of grant, the options expire. Options are forfeited if the
employee leaves the Group.

?*Eﬁ?ﬁiﬁZHﬁﬁ%@%ﬁﬁ?&%
&

T B AR B iR B B AT R BRRAD AR AT -
AR S R - iR BBEFI A B AR A
BEHORW -

2014 2013
—E2-mF —F=F

Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share options exercise price  share options  exercise price
HK$ HK$
R T
BREHE TEE ElkEHE IR (E
BT BT

At beginning of the reporting period 7 ¥R & H347) 11,700,000 0.1292 -
Granted during the year REFEHR 21,600,000 0.47 11,700,000 0.1292

Exercised during the year REFITEE (8,450,000) 0.1756 -
Outstanding at the end of the year 4 3K i R 1T{& 24,850,000 0.4097 11,700,000 0.1292
Exercisable at the end of the year FRAITE 8,850,000 0.3006 11,700,000 0.1292

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$0.48. The
options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 6 years (2013: 5 years) and
the exercise prices range from HK$0.1292 to HK$0.47 (2013:
HK$0.1292). Options granted on 14 January 2013 and 10 January
2014 have estimated fair values of approximately HK$1,183,000
and approximately HK$7,182,000 respectively. During the year,
approximately HK$2,112,000 (2013:HK$1,183,000) equity settled
share-based payments have been charged against the Group’s
results.

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 28. LRI FT2RHBEBREBNARS
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (&)
The fair values was calculated using the binomial option pricing NEEDRAZBAREEEREN (=2 —=
model (2013: Black-Scholes pricing model). The inputs into the F MR BRI EERE) T E - ZRER
model are as follows: ZEABELT:
2014 2013

—E-mF —E-=F
Closing price as at grant date A BT E HK$0.477% T HK$0.12605 7T
Weighted average exercise price InEFHITEE HK$0.475& T HK$0.1292/%& 7T
Expected volatility & RO 18 97.178% - 115.32%

108.23%

Contractual life AHER 5 years F -

10 years 5 years F
Risk free rate B 1.462% - 2.347% 0.41%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B & Nil & Nil £
Expected volatility was determined with reference to historical Tﬁﬁﬁ& BLRBARRIREZELIEE (HREE
volatility of the Company’s share prices after excluding the ~  E&H EEB)EE - BE-TE—=F=A=1+—
suspension period. The expected life for the year ended 31 March EJtEEZ?E,ﬁHEHH@E”$ AIEREEM
2013 was determined with reference to the exercisable period of Rt 2 FTIE HAEE JE ©
the share options as advised by the management of the Company.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 2, mEBRERERNTE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 16 September 2013 (the “Completion Date”), the Group
acquired 100% equity interest in CYML from Dato POH Po
Lian (the “Ultimate Vendor”), the Single Largest Shareholder
of the Company (the “Acquisition”). Further details of the
Acquisition were published in the related circular of the
Company dated 18 July 2013. CYML is principally engaged
in the provision of services to electronic gaming equipment in
Macau. The purchase consideration for the Acquisition was
satisfied by issuance of convertible notes with an aggregate
nominal value of HK$69 million payable to the Ultimate
Vendor on the Completion Date.

@ WE-—EHRELH

RZFE—=FNA+B ([ZXAH]) -
AEBARAARE - HFARRBEERZ
B ([&ERET])WES B EIZ100%H#E
([WiE=ER]) - WEER 2 E—IEH
RARRBPR-E—=FLA+N\BZ
AP EERE 2R RIRM
}ETﬁﬁ%%%&{%HE?}%HﬁZEﬁ%IEZE%Ei

RAB B 1B 3 17 48 {869,000,00078 7T 2 A
%J&m%ﬁﬁﬁ WBER KBS NF&
Z&tﬁo
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 20. IEREREBRME (H)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(a) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued) (@ WwWE—BEHREAR (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of CYML FTER S ER 2 AIHAIEEREER K
acquired as at its date of acquisition was as follows: BHB2 AFENT:
Notes HK$'000
B FET
Property, plant and equipment ERY Sy e 17 32,251
Intangible assets EmREAE 18 50,190
Inventories FE 27
Trade and other receivables 5 & E ARG 2,909
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S EER 937
Trade and other payables =L &ﬁﬁﬁf@f ﬁ B4 (7,203)
Due to related companies FEfT R N RIFIA (27,429)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIES f, : 26 (6,023)
45,659
Goodwill on acquisition g1t i 19 59,050
104,709
Satisfied by: XA
Fair value of convertible notes issued

EETUBRKRER S AFE 25 104,709

BB -RNBARZREESEFE
BERRANFEZOMWT

P s 2 SR1T IR & AR 937

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

Bank and cash balances acquired

WEHEEEELZHEREN /xF'EHE{
ETFEERERE 2 EMENE

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of CYML is
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the provision of
services to electronic gaming equipment in Macau.

FERERNWB BN RENRPHE B
AEBzRFREEERERD B ERMD

CYML contributed approximately HK$9,556,000 and
HK$9,655,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss respectively

for the year from the period between the date of acquisition 9,556,000/ 7t 129,655,000/ 7T ©
and the end of the reporting period.
If the acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2013, total W EEER T —=F WA —H=EK"

AEBZ RFREWHERBELRFEBIED

Group revenue for the year would have been approximately

HK$69,444,000 and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$21,802,000. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 April 2013, nor is intended
to be a projection of future results.
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29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZz—ZT—WF=A=+—HIFE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Disposal of subsidiaries b)

On 30 September 2013, the Group disposed of its entire
interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Expert Global
Investments Limited (the “Disposed Company”), to an
independent third party at a cash consideration of RMB110
million (equivalent to approximately HK$136,750,000) (“the
Disposal”). Further details of the Disposal were published in
the related circular of the Company dated 18 July 2013.

29. FERERERME (&)

HEHBATE

R-B—=FAA=1H r£EEHR—%
BYEZHHEREMBRRERERE
BAERAR(HERQRR)z 280 #EE"

B & R E A AREE110,000,0007T (FHER
#9136,750,000/%8 C) ([HEEE]) - HE
EPE—SHBIERARRRH AT
—ZFtA+N\BZBERK-

Notes HK$'000
B &E FHET
Net assets at the date of REERBZFEENT
disposal were as follows:
Investment properties AW 16 194,117
Property, plant and equipment LIERE Sy 17 112
Trade and other receivables B 5) N H ith FE UK 1,434
Bank and cash balances RTINS R 2,182
Trade and other payables B REAMENK (5,603)
Current tax liabilities NERIBEE (66)
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBAER 26 (32,857)
Net assets disposed of Fr&FEE 159,319
Foreign currency translation reserve HEMBARE
reclassified to profit or loss upon EFoERERY
disposal of subsidiaries INER E R (30,713)
Non-controlling interests TR (119)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBA Rz WE 8,263
Total consideration — satisfied by cash BRE- ARSI 136,750
An analysis of the net inflow of cashand  HEZHE RS KBS FEER
cash equivalents in respect of MAERESHTT -
the Disposal is as follows:
Consideration received in cash and 2R RReFEEERE
cash equivalents 136,750
Bank and cash balances disposed of BEHEZRITRIASEH (2,182)
134,568

TEEXRERRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

RERTRERME ()

(c) Major non-cash transaction © FEHFRERS
During the year ended 31 March 2013, other loan with HEZZT—=F=A=+—HLFE'H
the amount of approximately HK$10,000,000 was settled 10,000,000/ 7T 2 Hth ERiEBMAA B E
through issuance of convertible notes in an equivalent REBERANETEFRTRREREN -
amount to respective lenders of such loan.
30. RESERVES 30. f#fE
(@) The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements () AEEFFESELHEEINGEEREE
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of profit HEEmRERMGEESEHREN -
or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.
(b) Reserves of the Company b ALQREE
Capital
Share Capital redemption  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
R EHE EXffE EXEERE 4y} @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AL TAT TR TAT
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——FWNA—H 850,982 - 1,190 (812,312 39,860
Total comprehensive loss AEER2EABELER
for the year - - - (50,611) (50,611)
Equity-settled share-based PR T2 Rk
payments EWIEH - 1,183 - - 1,183
Issue of new shares BITHR 31,359 - - 31,359
Issue of convertible notes BOITBRRREE - 2,127 - - 2,127
At 31 March 2013 and N_T—=F
1 April 2013 ,ﬂ + AR
—¥MA—H 882,341 3,310 1,190 (862,923) 23,918
Total comprehensive $¢f§'i\@[§ﬂ§ k]
loss for the year - - - (4,020 (4,020)
Equity-settled share-based AR X 2 B 17
payments AL - 2,112 - - 2112
Issue of ordinary shares upon BB IR IEETT RS
exercise of share options BITE AR 2,450 (1,051) - - 1,399
Issue of convertible notes BIIBRERE - 55,565 - - 55,565
Redemption of BOARERE
convertible notes - (2,127) - 2,127 -
884,791 57,809 1,190 (864,816) 78,974
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BIEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZz—ZT—WF=A=+—HIFE

31. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL POSITION OF 31. RRFHBARREE
THE COMPANY

2014 2013
—E-mF =%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ERY Ty 197 21

Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables 5 & E bR 11,060 1,911
Amount due from subsidiaries JFEU B B A B R B 79,876 38,891
Bank and cash balances RITRIMN B LR 67,672 16,270
158,608 57,072
Current liabilities REBAE

Trade and other payables B 5 MEMERR 533 1,852
Convertible notes AR E IR 2,070 19,718
Amount due to a subsidiaries JEN—MIM B AR FE 16,689 1,152
19,292 22,722
Net current assets REBEEFE 139,316 34,350
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARS 139,513 34,371

Non-current liabilities FkRBERE
Convertible notes AT E g 50,001 -
NET ASSETS EEFE 89,512 34,371

Capital and reserves BEAXRf®EE
Share capital [N 10,538 10,453
Reserves i 78,974 23,918
TOTAL EQUITY HE s 89,512 34,371

TEEXRERRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Hz—

32. COMMITMENTS

—mEFE=A=+—HILFE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments:

(a)

(=)

Commitments under operating leases
As lessor

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group leases its
investment properties under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one to three
years. The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

A

JiNE?

@)

32, EiE

REHIR  AERBZAEINT

RERERE
TERHTN

REBE-T-=F=A=1+—HILFE &
SEREBEEEHETHFHERERENE
BEZZHEPN T —E=F - HEGR—
RIMRERP T HERRE MR E RS
THREHHEES -

RIRE IR RIFEBPET L Z TR
REME NEEZRRSEEREEN
THABRR T’i‘JHﬂF'EJ BIH -

2014 2013

—E-ImF —F—=F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FET

Within one year —FR - 7,638
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EF-EZFERFNR

(BEEREME) - 999

- 8,637

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases are
negotiated for a term ranging from one to three years (2013:
one to five years). The Group does not have an option to
purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the leased period.
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32. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=—Z—WF=A=+—HIFE

32. #iE (&)

Commitments under operating leases () KEHEERE(E
(Continued)
As lessee (Continued) tERATA (88)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIER  RIB T BEHEEHE A&
commitments for future minimum lease payments under B 2 R AR =R E AR AN T 5 25
non-cancellable operating leases which are payable as AT
follows:
2014 2013
—ZET—MmF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Within one year —F R 4,504 1,555
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EZERFNA
(BEEREME) 4,537 1,156
9,041 2,711
Capital commitments b) EAREE

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment amounted to approximately HK$4,327,000
(2013: HKS$NIl).

RZZB—MF=A=+—H FEEHKE
M ez MR IR AT EAL B AR S 7
R NIE LB E 2 B AR X4 84,327,000

BIE(ZF—=F BB -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group
had the following transactions with its related parties during

33 BEALIRZ

(a)

BRI BHRREAMBOBRRELBEALRZS
RAEERSN REBRFRNEEFEALE

TR S:

the year:
2014
—E—NF
Notes HK$’°000
B 5 THERT
— Management fee received from Weike — g Bx Weike (G) Management Pte Ltd
(G) Management Pte Ltd (“Weike Pte”) ([Weke Pte ) v BB & 0} 2,899
— Electronic gaming machines, computer — [ Weike Gaming Technology (S) Pte
systems and spare parts purchased Limited ([ Weike Gaming | ) & &
from Weike Gaming Technology (S) EFEEUE BHEGELSH
Pte Limited (“Weike Gaming”) (ii) 14,670

0] The management fee was charged at predetermined amounts

agreed between the parties involved.

(ii) The terms of the purchases are negotiated at the market price

similar to other suppliers.

(iii) Weike Pte and Weike Gaming are companies ultimately controlled
by the Single Largest Shareholder.

Key management compensation

The key management personnel of the Group comprise all
the Directors and the five highest paid individuals. Details
of the compensation to Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are included in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. LITIGATIONS

(a)

The Company against Mr. Cheng Chee Tock
Theodore (“Mr. Cheng”), Ms. Leonora Yung (“Ms.
Yung”) and others

In connection with the payment in the sum of HK$9,306,500
(the “Payment”) made to Ms. Yung, the spouse of Mr.
Cheng (being a former Director) and a former employee
of the Company, purportedly for legal fees and expenses
incurred by Mr. Cheng and Ms. Yung in relation to (i) the
ICAC Investigation, details of which were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 13 September
2010, 7 October 2010, 7 March 2011 and 6 October 2011;
and (i) petition under section 168A of the old Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (alternative remedy to winding up in
cases of unfair prejudice) details of which were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 21 April 2010,
24 January 2011, 27 January 2011, 27 April 2012 and 11
May 2012. In relation to the Payment, on 14 April 2011, the
Company, as plaintiff, has issued an originating summons in
the Court of First Instance at the High Court of Hong Kong
(the “High Court”) against Mr. Cheng, Ms. Yung, Mr. Ng Pui
Lung (being a former Director), Mr. Wang Shanchuan (being
a former Director) and Mr. Ho Chi Chung (“Mr. Joseph Ho”,
being a former Director and the former acting chief executive
officer of the Group).

Pursuant to the Court order dated 18 March 2013, the
proceedings are stayed until the determination of Mr.
Cheng’s appeal against his conviction in District Court
DCCC No. 476 of 2011 to the Court of Appeal. On 14
March 2014, the Court of Appeal handed down a judgment
dismissing applications by Mr. Cheng and Mr. Philip Yu for
leave to appeal against their conviction.

Post-event notes: By a notice of motion filed on 14 April
2014, Mr. Cheng sought leave to make an application out of
time for a certificate under section 32(2) of the Hong Kong
Court of Final Appeal Ordinance. On 12 June 2014, the
Court of Appeal refused Mr. Cheng’s application.

e ISR R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZz—ZT—WF=A=+—HIFE

34.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

34. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

The Company and Highsharp Investments
Limited (“Highsharp”), as plaintiffs

On 5 May 2011, the Company and Highsharp, a former
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as plaintiffs,
issued a writ of summons in the High Court against, among
others, Mr. Cheng, Ms. Yung, the personal representatives
of Mr. Kok Teng Nam (deceased), Mr. Philip Yu and Agustus
Investments Limited.

Pursuant to the Court order dated 18 March 2013, the
proceedings are stayed until the determination of Mr.
Cheng’s appeal against his conviction in District Court
DCCC No. 476 of 2011 to the Court of Appeal. On 14
March 2014, the Court of Appeal handed down a judgment
dismissing applications by Mr. Cheng and Mr. Philip Yu for
leave to appeal against their conviction.

Post-event notes: By a notice of motion filed on 14 April
2014, Mr. Cheng sought leave to make an application out of
time for a certificate under section 32(2) of the Hong Kong
Court of Final Appeal Ordinance. On 12 June 2014, the
Court of Appeal refused Mr. Cheng’s application.

The Company and Ace Precise International
Limited (“Ace Precise”), as plaintiffs

On 6 May 2011, the Company and Ace Precise, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as plaintiffs, issued a writ
of summons in the High Court against Best Max Holdings
Limited (“Best Max”), Mr. Lo Chun Cheong (being the sole
director and registered shareholder of Best Max) (‘Mr. Lo”),
Mr. Cheng, Mr. Joseph Ho and Mr. Yeung Tak Hung Arthur
(“Mr. Arthur Yeung”, being the former chief operating officer
of the Group (collectively referred to as the “Defendants”)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

The Company and Ace Precise International
Limited (“Ace Precise”), as plaintiffs (Continued)

The hearing of Mr. Lo’s striking out summons was heard
on 7 February 2012. The judgment in respect of Mr. Lo’s
application to strike out his statement of claim was handed
down on 3 June 2013. According to the said judgment, it
is ordered that the claim against Mr. Lo for restitution of the
HK$12 million convertible bond be struck out. The Company
will continue instituting the claims against the Defendants.
The pleadings stage had been completed and the stage of
discovery was in progress.

Subsidiaries of the Company against Mr. Cheng

On 11 June 2011, the Company, together with certain of its
former wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely CYC Investments
Limited, Sincere Land Holdings Limited, Hainan Treasure
Way Enterprises Limited, Hainan Jiaying Internet Technology
Company Limited, Suzhou C Y Foundation Entertainment
and Investment Management Limited, CYC Investment
Consultancy (Wuxi) Limited and Longpin Investment
Consultancy (Shanghai) Company Limited, as plaintiffs (the
“Plaintiffs”), issued an originating summons in the High Court
to claim against Mr. Cheng.

The first joint mediation session was held on 24 May
2013 and was concluded after both the Plaintiffs and Mr.
Cheng failed to reach any settlement. A case management
conference was held on 12 March 2014.

Witness statements and expert report(s) had been
exchanged between the Plaintiffs and Mr. Cheng.

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Hz—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

34. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

The Company against former management and
employees

On 8 June 2011, the Company, as plaintiff, issued a writ
of summons in the High Court against, among others, Mr.
Cheng, Ms. Yung, Mr. Joseph Ho, Mr. Arthur Yeung, Ms.
Kwok Pui Hung (being a former director of human resources
of the Group), Mr. Tsang Heung Yip (being a former financial
controller of the Group) and other six former employees
(collectively referred to as the “Defendants”).

After the mediation session held on 19 July 2012, both
the Company and the Defendants are not able to reach an
agreement to settle the dispute, the mediation was therefore
concluded on the same day.

Pre-trial review was held on 4 March 2014 and the trial was
scheduled to be held from 27 May 2014 to 11 June 2014.

Post-event notes: This trial started on 27 May 2014 but after
6 days’ hearing, the action was adjourned on 4 June 2014
to be heard on 21 July 2014.

A subsidiary of the Company against Ms. Yung

Ms. Yung and Kingbox (Asia) Limited (“Kingbox”) (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) purportedly
entered into a supplemental agreement dated 4 January
2010 (the “Supplemental Agreement”) which provides that
Kingbox would pay to Ms. Yung upon her termination of
employment a remunerative payment which equaled her
annual salary income multiplied by two years (the total
amount should not exceed 28 months’ salary). Ms. Yung
had made a claim against Kingbox for arrears of wages
and the remunerative payment under the Supplemental
Agreement after her resignation. On 17 August 2011,
Kingbox, as plaintiff, commenced a legal proceeding in the
High Court against Ms. Yung, as defendant, in respect of the
Supplemental Agreement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

()

(9)

A subsidiary of the Company against Ms. Yung
(Continued)

Both Kingbox and Ms. Yung agreed for mediation. The first
joint mediation session was held on 30 April 2012 but ended
on 7 May 2012, as Kingbox and Ms. Yung were not able to
reach an agreement to settle the dispute.

Pre-trial review was held on 16 April 2014 and the trial was
scheduled to be held from 23 July 2014 to 30 July 2014.

Post-event notes: The parties came to a settlement of this
action, such that Kingbox’s costs of this action up to 26 May
2014 will be paid by Ms. Yung, to be taxed if not agreed.

A subsidiary of the Company against Lucky Belt
Holdings Limited (“Lucky Belt”), Mr. Shek Hiu
Hung (“Mr. Shek”), BG Global Gaming Limited
(“BG Global”), Winning Beauty Investments
Limited (“Winning Beauty”) and Mr. Leung Ching
Yuen Ronald (“Mr. Leung”)

On 11 May 2012, Lucky Zone Holdings Limited (‘Lucky
Zone”), a subsidiary of the Company, issued three writs
of summons in the High Court, respectively against Lucky
Belt, Mr. Shek, BG Global, Winning Beauty and Mr. Leung
(collectively referred to as the “Defendants”) in respect of the
convertible notes and deposit paid for software development
and license agreement (Bingo) relating to sums of USD3.0
million and USD2.5 million for the convertible notes (the “CB
Cases”); and HK$15 million for the deposit (the “Deposit
Case”) respectively, together with the related interests, costs
and further and/or other relief.
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34. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(9)

A subsidiary of the Company against Lucky Belt
Holdings Limited (“Lucky Belt”), Mr. Shek Hiu
Hung (“Mr. Shek”), BG Global Gaming Limited
(“BG Global”), Winning Beauty Investments
Limited (“Winning Beauty”) and Mr. Leung Ching
Yuen Ronald (“Mr. Leung”) (Continued)

A decision was handed down at the hearing held on 29
May 2013. It was mentioned in the said decision that the
defendants of the CB Cases have to pay Lucky Zone all the
sums of convertible notes plus interest up to 11 May 2012.

For one of the CB Case, on 22 July 2013, Lucky Zone and
Mr. Leung entered into a Deed of Settlement in relation to
the settlement of the award made under the said decision.
Pursuant to the Deed of Settlement, Mr. Leung shall pay
US$2,000,000 to Lucky Zone for the settlement of the
respective judgment sum (equivalent to approximately
US$2,614,270) plus legal fee of HK$100,000. Up to the end
of the reporting period, the Company has received around
HK$12.1 million and has HK$3.5 million receivable from M.
Leung, and such amounts were included in other income of
the consolidated profit or loss and presented as “Recovery
of other receivables previously written off/impaired”.

For the other CB case, Bankruptcy Petition was
commenced on 6 December 2013 against Mr. Shek.

Post-event notes: Bankruptcy Order against Mr. Shek had
been granted by the Court on 25 June 2014.

More details of the above litigations were disclosed in the

2010/11,

2011/12 and 2012/13 Annual Reports as well as

2011/12, 2012/13 and 2013/14 Interim Reports of the Company
respectively, the Company will issue further announcements
to update the status of the above outstanding litigations when
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

e ISR R AL

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZz—ZT—WF=A=+—HIFE

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results of the

year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

35. TEMELF

TRIHEFAREIBFEAEEAFERER
HRERBDEEFEZARRMNBAR -ESE
REHTIEMMB AR SERIRBRITE

RERRZ TE2MBRRFBNT

Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation/ of issued equity interest
registration/ ordinary shares/ attributable to the
Name of subsidiary operations paid-in capital Company Principal activities
HEMRL, ERTEBR FARAEERE
MELR AR S HE/ BRER BAlk FEEK
Indirectly held:
s
Kingbox (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100%  Manufacture of packaging products
for luxury goods in China
22 (TM)BRRF e 5,000,000/ 7T RABEEE SRR RER
Huizhou Kingbox Manufactory The PRC HK$2,800,000 100%  Manufacture of packaging products
Limited* for luxury goods in China
EMeRTEMEERAF & 2,800,000/ 7T RHBIZEZEEnEEED
Kingbox (Shenzhen) Manufactory The PRC HK$4,000,000 100%  Manufacture of packaging products
Limited * for luxury goods in China
2R (ORI IBHRERAT ] 4,000,00078 7T RABZEZEEnEEED
CY Management Limited Macau MOP 25,000 100%  Provision of services to electronic
gaming equipment in Macau
HEEEERAQA ot 25,0002F5 7T RRFIRME F B R E RS
* The English names are for identification only * EXEBEHR2E

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any

significant contingent liabilities (2013: Nil).

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue

by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2014.
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Five Year Financial Summary
hENBEE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group AEEBRETEAMBRFEC EEREERBERED
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited B R EERM B RERWCEY,EHHE (0
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out BE) #HIWT

below.

RESULTS E 5

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+t-HLHFE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NF =—=—=F —ZT—=—F =—ZT——F ZT—ITF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FExT FAT FAT FAT FHBT

CONTINUING OPERATIONS FREREXEK

Turnover BEE 57,214 54,002 157,157 145,075 117,149
Loss before tax BB RIEE (19,717) (69,177) (68,161) (293,811) (80,117)
Income tax Frig®t 262 30 (6,625) (10,549) (3,429)
Loss for the year from BEREERY
continuing operations KEEFEEE (19,455) (69,147) (74,786) (304,360) (83,546)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS E#& I Q#& #5
Profit for the year from ERIMHREERZ
discontinued operations REE R A 6,690 3,941 - - -
Loss for the year REFER (12,765) (65,206) (74,786) (304,360) (83,546)
Attributable to: AT AT BN
Owners of the Company KARHEE A (11,759) (65,203) (73,521) (302,972) (78,594)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR 7 (1,006) @) (1,265) (1,388) (4,952)
(12,765) (65,206) (74,786) (304,360) (83,546)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—-H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

—EZ-NFE —FT—=F —T—-F T——F ZZT—FTF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FET FiET FET FiET

Total assets BEE 290,248 240,878 271,465 315,929 627,036
Total liabilities FES=R (101,449) (70,320) (74,114) (58,740) (77,868)
Net assets BEFME 188,799 170,558 197,351 257,189 549,168

Attributable to: AT AT :
Owners of the Company RARHEE A 188,799 169,450 106,245 254,890 547,904
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR 71 - 1,108 1,106 2,299 1,264
188,799 170,558 197,351 257,189 549,168

C Y Foundation Group Limited
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